
CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES 
BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
9.30 am FRIDAY, 22ND MARCH, 2019

VOLUNTARY ACTION CENTRE, 89/90 HIGH STREET, 
MERTHYR TYDFIL, CF47 8UH

This Agenda has been prepared by the 
Merthyr Tydfil Democratic Services Department. Any member of the public requiring 

information should contact the department on (01685 725284) or email 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk.

Any reference documents referred to but not published as part of this agenda can be found 
on the Council’s website or intranet under Background Papers.

AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence 

2. Declarations of Interest (including whipping 
declarations) 
Members are reminded of their personal 
responsibility to declare any personal and 
prejudicial interest in respect of matters contained 
in this agenda in accordance with the provisions of 
the Local Government and Finance Act 1992 
relating to Council Tax, the Local Government Act 
2000, the Council’s Constitution and the Members 
Code of Conduct

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


Note:

(a) Members are reminded that they must 
identify the item number and subject matter 
that their interest relates to and signify the 
nature of the personal interest and

(b) Where Members withdraw from a Meeting 
as a consequence of the disclosure of a 
prejudicial interest they must notify the 
Chair when they leave

3. Minutes of Previous Meeting(s) 
To approve as accurate the Minutes of the 
following Meeting(s)

3.1  24/01/2019 5 - 8

4. Progress Update - Cwm Taf PSB and Cwm Taf 
SPB 
To consider the attached report 9 - 106

5. Strong Economy 
To consider the attached report 107 - 118

6. Loneliness and Isolation 
To consider the attached report 119 - 138

7. Work Programme 2018 - 19 
To consider the attached report 139 - 142

8. Any Other Business deemed urgent by the Chair 



COMPOSITION: Councillors:
T Skinner (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) (Chair)
J Bonetto (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:
J Amos (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), C J Barry (Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC), G Caple (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), E George 
(Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), D Isaac (Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC), D Macey (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC), M J Powell 
(Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) and D Sammon (Merthyr 
Tydfil CBC)

Co-optees:
M Jehu (Local Health Board), J Jenkins (Community 
Health Council), M A Lewis (RCT Citizen 
Representative) and M J Maguire (MT Citizen 
Representative)

together with appropriate officers

If you would prefer a copy of this agenda in another language please contact 
democratic@merthyr.gov.uk or telephone 01685 725284

mailto:democratic@merthyr.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



MINUTES OF MEETING

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES 
BOARD JOINT OVERVIEW 

AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
MEETING

THURSDAY, 24TH JANUARY, 2019

PRESENT: Councillors:
T Skinner (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) (Chair)
J Bonetto (Rhondda Cynon Taf CBC) (Vice-Chair)

Councillors:
J Amos (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), C J Barry (Merthyr Tydfil CBC), 
D Isaac (Merthyr Tydfil CBC) and D Sammon (Merthyr Tydfil 
CBC)

Cooptees:
M Jehu (Local Health Board), M A Lewis (RCT Citizen 
Representative) and M J Maguire (MT Citizen Representative)

Officers:
G W Chapman (Chief Executive) and A Powell (Performance 
and Scrutiny Manager), C Hanagan and J Nicolls (Democratic 
Services RCT)

Outside Bodies:
A Jones (Lead Healthy People), S James (Chair Information, 
Communication and Engagement / Involvement (ICE) Group, 
K Wells, K Smith and L Toghill (Public Service Board)

M Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.1



ITEM 
NO.

AGENDA MATTER DECISION

Tour

The Committee met at the Gurnos Community Zone and undertook a Tour of the facilities.

1  Apologies for Absence Apologies for absence were received from Councillor G 
Caple (RCT), Councillor E George (RCT), Councillor D 
Macey (RCT) and Mr J Roome (Ambulance Service).

2  Declarations of Interest 
(including whipping 
declarations)

No Declarations of Interest were made. 

3  Minutes of Previous 
Meeting(s)

The Committee approves as accurate (subject to any 
amendments) the Minutes of the following Meeting:

3a  22/11/ 2018 Resolved that:

The Minutes of the Meeting held 22 November 2018 be 
accepted as a correct record. 

4  Progress Update - 
Cwm Taf PSB and 
Cwm Taf SPB

The Chair welcomed Gareth Chapman Vice Chair of the 
Public Service Board to the Meeting.

Gareth Chapman updated the Committee on progress 
made by the PSB and SPB and gave details on:

 Potential Merger with Bridgend
 Performance Monitoring, Evaluation Framework
 Outcomes of joint working
 Impact 
 The agreed Budget for 2019/2020
 Employability Pledge
 Youth Engagement – (The Committee were 

advised of a joint Youth Conference taking place on 
13 March 2019 at Merthyr College and 
representatives of the Committee were welcome to 
attend)

 Community Safety Board
 One small change Campaign
 Good Practice
 Good Partner Arrangements
 Newsletter to be published
 Priorities for the next quarter
 Monitoring of Impact

A Member referred to the Minutes of the Cwm Taf Public 
Service Board that had been provided to the Committee 
and stated that they were a helpful aid to understanding the 
work of the PSB and would like to the see the Minutes of 
the PSB Meetings presented at every Committee Meeting.

Page 6



Another Member referred to the Healthy People Objective 
and the issue of getting people to engage and could there 
be an alternative method of providing information in an 
informative format.

The Chair then thanked Gareth Chapman for attending and 
the update to the Committee.

5  Healthy Places Update The Chair welcomed Angela Jones Healthy People Lead to 
the Meeting.

Angela Jones referred the Committee to the ‘Overview of 
Cwm Taf Well-being Objectives Delivery Plans’ report and 
gave an update on the work being undertaken to deliver 
against the Healthy Places objective referring in detail to:

 The Wellbeing Objective
 Biggest Priority Areas
 Improving Outcomes – The first thousand days of 

life
 Co-construction project – Children up to the age of 

seven
 Helping people live healthier for longer
 Wellbeing Plan – Children, Play, Education, 

Parenting Provision
 First stage mapping
 Sharing of key data
 Adverse childhood experiences
 Keeping people healthy for longer

Questions were then raised by the Committee in relation to:

 The first thousand days – Where is information 
being distributed to support what is trying to be 
done

 Data and Information
 Change of Culture
 Information, Engagement and Influence
 What will the new vision look like 

The Chair then thanked Angela Jones for the update to the 
Committee.

6  Information, 
Communication and 
Engagement Group

The Chair welcomed Simon James Chair Information, 
Communication and Engagement / Involvement (ICE) 
Group to the Meeting.

Simon James referred the Committee to the ‘Update report 
on the Work of the Information, Communication and 
Engagement Group’ report and gave an update on the work 
being undertaken by the ICE Group and how this 
contributed to the PSB’s Wellbeing objectives.

Questions were then raised by the Committee in relation to:

 Involvement of Citizens
 Data sharing between multi agencies
 Sharing of Resources

Page 7



The Chair then thanked Simon James for the update to the 
Committee and advised that the Committee would continue 
to receive further information on this matter.

Mr M Jehu left the Meeting at 11.30 am.

7  Work Programme 
2018-19

The Chair referred the Committee to the ‘Work Programme’ 
report and the Programme was agreed. 

Anne Powell then referred to the report and the Committee 
scheduled for March 2019 and advised that 22 March 2019 
was a Friday and not Thursday 21 2019 as previously 
agreed.

The committee then agreed that the next Committee 
Meeting be held on Friday 22 March 2019.

The Committee also considered dates for the next Meeting 
and the Committee provisionally agreed to a date in June to 
be confirmed at the next Meeting.

8  Any Other Business 
deemed urgent by the 
Chair

The Committee were advised that Jason Roome 
representing the Ambulance Service had tendered his 
resignation from the Committee with immediate effect.

Resolved that:

A replacement Committee Member be sought to represent 
the Ambulance Service.

Page 8



Cwm Taf SPB 
Board Pack  

19 February 2019, 14:00 - 17:00
SWFRS HQ, Llantrisant, CF72 8LX.
Parking is available on-site. Please note ID will be required for access. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4

www.ourcwmtaf.wales


 

 

 

CWM TAF STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 

AGENDA 

19th February 2019  
14:00 – 17:00 

Venue: Fire & Rescue Service HQ - Forest View Business Park, Llantrisant , CF72 8LX 

Time No Item  SPB Lead  

2:00 1.  WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES 
 

KN 

 2.  DECLARATION OF INTEREST KN 

2:05 3.  MINUTES AND ACTIONS FROM MEETING 8TH January 2019  

 Agreement of minutes from 8th January 2019 

 Updates on Actions Arising from Minutes 
 

KN 

2:10 4.  CHAIRS OPENING REMARKS AND UPDATE FROM PSB 

 Chair to provide update from the PSB meeting re: items from / 
to PSB 

 Amendment of frequency of meetings, following change to 
support arrangements  

KN 

2:20 5.  CWM TAF WELL-BEING PLAN – DELIVERY 
Consideration, support and challenge of progress made against the 
delivery plans approved by the Public Services Board on 17 July. 
 
Update reports attached for 
i. Thriving Communities/Community Zones – 

a) Rhondda Fach 
b) Merthyr Tydfil – Gurnos    

ii. Healthy People 
iii. Strong Economy  (incl. Employability Pledge Update) 
iv. Tackling Loneliness and Isolation   

 
15 mins each 
 

 
 

PM 
 
 

AJ 
AO 
ID 

3:20 6.  PERFORMANCE MANAGEMENT / EVALUATION FRAMEWORK 

 Update on progress to date and next steps 

 Update on delivery plans from 19/20 onwards 
 

Support 
Officer / 
Objective 
leads 

3.30 7.  STATUTORY ANNUAL REPORT 

 Update from Lead on progress to date and next steps 
ND 

3:40 8.  UPDATES FROM BOARDS 
I. Cwm Taf Community Safety Partnership Board  

II. Substance Misuse Area Planning Board  

 
PM 
KN 

1
Page 10

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/objectives


 

 

Time No Item  SPB Lead  

III. Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board  
IV. Cwm Taf Together for Mental Health Partnership Board 
V. Regional Partnership Board  

VI. Information, Communication and Engagement (ICE) – 15 mins  
VII. Valleys Task Force  
 
(5 min each unless specified) 
Opportunity to provide updates to SPB, identify collaboration 
opportunities and any barriers.  
 

GI 
AL 

GI/ND 
SJ 

MH 

4:05 9.  SHIFT TOWARDS PREVENTION 
Presentation from Chair of SPB  

KN 

4:30 
 

10.  CHAIR’S REVIEW  

 Opportunity for all members to review the meeting  

 Identify the good news stories for publication via ‘Our Cwm 
Taf’  

 Agreement of issues to escalate to Public Services Board 
 

KN / ALL 
 

4:45 11.  ANY OTHER BUSINESS Notified to Chair in Advance of Meeting 

 Update on ACES 
 

KN / ALL 

5.00 1.  NEXT MEETING -  2nd April 2019 
THANKS AND CLOSE 

KN 

  INFORMATION REPORTS/DOCUMENTS 

 Joint PSB / RPB event  

 Involvement event 

 People’s Platform 

 SPB Work Plan 2019/20 
 

 

 

2
Page 11



 

Agenda Item 3_Minutes and Actions from Meeting 8th January 2019_SPBFEB19 

 

CWM TAF STRATEGIC PARTNERSHIP BOARD 
Tuesday 8 January 2019 

South Wales Fire & Rescue Service Headquarters 
Llantrisant 

Action Notes 
Attendees  

Kelechi Nnoaham Cwm Taf UHB (Chair) 

Nadia De Longhi Natural Resources Wales  

Nigel Williams  South Wales Fire and Rescue Service  

Paul Mee RCTCBC 

Chris Lee RC TCBC 

Mark Brace SWPCC 

Naomi Drew SWP 

Nicola Davies Cwm Taf UHB 

Lisa Curtis Jones MTCBC 

Chris Hole MTCBC 

Deb Ryan-Newton MTCBC 

Ian Hargreaves DWP 

Angela Jones Public Health Wales 

Ian Davy VAMT 

Lowenna Mummery MTCBC 

 
Apologies  

Andrew Mogford MTCBC 

Simon James Interlink 

Kelly Wells PSB Support 

Ruth Treharne Cwm Taf UHB 

Clare Williams Cwm Taf UHB 

Sue Walker MTCBC 

Alan Lawrie NHS 

Amanda Lewis Probation 

Katie Price Probation 

Alyn Owen Cwm Taf UHB 

Felicity Walters Cwm Taf UHB 

Phil Ashby SWP 

 
In attendance  

Kirsty Smith Cwm Taf Partnership Support Team 

Lisa Toghill Cwm Taf Partnership Support Team 

Julie Griffin South Wales Fire and Rescue Service  

Andrew Stephens Data Cymru 

3
Page 12

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/objectives


 

Leanne Teichner Data Cymru 

 
 

 Item  Outcome e.g. decision/direction/approval/next steps 

1. WELCOME AND 
APOLOGIES 

The Chair welcomed all to the meeting and apologies were noted.  
Introductions were made. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF 
INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest. 

3. MINUTES AND ACTION LOG 
FROM MEETING HELD 6 
NOVEMBER 2018 

The actions of the meeting held 6 November 2018 were agreed as a 
true record. 
 
All actions are on track for completion by the deadlines. 
 

4. CHAIRS OPENING 
REMARKS AND UPDATE 
FROM PSB 

The Chair advised that he needed to leave at 3:30pm, Nadia De Longhi  
agreed to take over Chair of the meeting. 
 
The Chair advised that feedback received indicated that attendees 
enjoyed the workshop format of the last SPB meeting, with attendees 
finding the session more interactive and more meaningful 
conversations being held. 
 
The Chair confirmed that Highlight reports from Objective Leads were  
for information only for this meeting.  Should anyone have questions, 
they are to approach the relevant Lead. 
 
The Chair advised that the amalgamation into one PSB with Bridgend 
took up a lot of the PSB agenda. 
 
Items on the January PSB agenda include: 

 Update on Well-being Objectives  

 PSB budget & Support Team – will take to PSB for 
endorsement  

 Update from Chair and Vice Chair of JOSC – will be giving their 
feedback 

 Update on first Annual Report 

 Update on Cwm Taf Estates Pilot 
 

5. PSB BUDGET AND 
SUPPORT TEAM 

Agenda item brought forward as Chris Lee needed to leave early. 
 
The PSB support team and Data Cymru colleagues left the room for 
this agenda item. 
 
Chris Lee circulated copies of 2018/19 Budget Monitoring and 
2019/20 Draft Budget Report which set out the projected revenue 
outturn position for the Cwm Taf Partnership Support Team in 
2018/19 and the proposed draft revenue budget for 2019/20.  
 
In addition to partnership contributions, all noted the correspondence 
from Welsh Government advising of package of support for PSBs for 
2019/20. 
 4

Page 13



 Item  Outcome e.g. decision/direction/approval/next steps 

Chris Lee outlined the proposed arrangements for support in light of 
resignation of the PSB Support Team Manager. 
 
After discussion, SPB agreed that the recommendations contained 
within the report be forwarded to the PSB for their consideration and 
approval at its meeting taking place 22 January 2019.  
Action: Propose PSB endorse SPB recommendation relating to the PSB 
Support Team and Budget Papers.  

6. PERFORMANCE 
MANAGEMENT 
FRAMEWORK 

The Chair advised that, following on from discussion at the last 
meeting, consideration now needs to be given to Well-being Delivery 
Plans, in relation to the way forward for the second year, and 
evaluating progress made in the first year. 
 
He introduced Andrew Stephens and Leanne Teichner from Data 
Cymru who had been invited to facilitate a workshop for the 
production of an outcome focused evaluation framework.  The day’s 
session is to begin the development of a framework, ensuring 
objectives are underpinned by robust outcomes, with clear next steps. 
Some of this work had already been started by the Thriving 
Communities Objective, linked to the Children’s First pioneer project, 
and positive feedback was reported from their strategic group. 
 
Data Cymru colleagues used the session to work through the 
remaining two Objectives and cross-cutting theme with a view of 
developing an impact statement for each one and some defined 
outcomes. 
 
At the end of the workshop. The Chair thanked Andrew Stephens and 
Leanne Teichner for their valuable assistance and input. 
Discussion was had over next steps. It was agreed that Data Cymru 
would share their workshop findings and that the Objective Leads 
would review with their delivery groups. A session to collectively 
challenge amongst the Objective leads was welcomed. 
 
Action: Andrew Stephens and Leanne Teichner to share the results of 
the workshop sessions with the PSB support team. 
Action: Objective leads to review the findings of the workshop with 
their delivery groups. 
 

7. CHANGE OF MEETING 
CHAIR 

Kelechi Nnoaham left the meeting and Nadia de Longhi took the Chair. 

8. EMPLOYABILITY PLEDGE Lowenna Mummery gave an update on the Employability Pledge, and 
also circuited a copy of Objective 3, requesting that 3.1 of the 
objective is kept in mind when considering the Employability Pledge.  
 
She advised that Welsh language and living wage has not yet been 
considered by the group, these subjects will be discussed at a 
forthcoming meeting. 
 
She confirmed that she is in the process of meeting with partners to 
discuss commitment to the Pledge.   The Chair advised that key figures 5

Page 14



 

 Item  Outcome e.g. decision/direction/approval/next steps 

are required at these meetings, who can make decisions and take 
things forward, and requested that the right people be involved. 
 
Suggestions made included a glossary of what we want to achieve, 
clarifying terms and a way of recording how we collaborate and what 
difference it is making.   
 
All endorsed the approach to take forward.  
 

9. UPDATES FROM BOARDS The reports circulated with the agenda were noted with the following 
observations from Leads: 
 
(I) Cwm Taf Community Safety Board 

 Early Action Together programme being rolled out with Police 
and PCCs office 

 Lots of work ongoing with \Family Service early interventions, 
also looking at pilots for emergency duty team and public 
support centre. 

 MARAC coordination remains an issue (see (iii) bullet point 2) 
 (ii) Substance Misuse Safety Partnership Board 

 Contract awarded to Barod 

 Cwm Taf Review of Drug Poisoning Fatalities 2015-17, 
development of an IDP is being explored. 

 Local Authority Boundary change coming into effect April 2019 
 (iii) Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board 

 Members of Bridgend PSB will join the development day taking 
place in January 

 Recommendations in relation to strengthening the current 
arrangements to support the MARAC Domestic Abuse Agenda 
were agreed at the CTSB in December, to increase 0.6 
administration post; this was endorsed, no further escalation 
to PSB required.   

(iv) Cwm Taf Together for Mental Health Partnership Board 
No update available for this meeting. 
 (v) Regional Partnership Board 
Report noted. 
 (vi) Information, Communication and Engagement (ICE) 
 Involvement – 

 No representative from ICE was in attendance so the Chair 
took the group through the update 

 The group needs to strengthen how it communicates with and 
engages residents. Some progress made with young people 
through using existing structure. Need to think about harder 
to reach groups, e.g. People with learning disabilities,  Nadia 
De Longhi will pick up with Simon in relation to the Annual 
Report 

 ‘Easy read’ format, very specialist form of communication, 
being looked into further.  Will pick up at next meeting along 
with recommendations relating to resources. 

 The draft newsletter was approved with a view to publish and 
share by the end of January. 

6
Page 15



 Item  Outcome e.g. decision/direction/approval/next steps 

 (vii) Valleys Task Force 
No update available for this meeting. 
Action: Bring forward discussion around recommendations from ICE 
group to February SPB meeting. 
Action: Nadia to speak with Simon around the Annual Report 
Action: Felicity to Publish and circulate the newsletter 
 

10. ONE SMALL CHANGE 
CAMPAIGN 

All noted the report informing of the One Small Change #FeelGreat 
campaign that will be expanded to include partner organisations in 
2019.  Angela Jones confirmed the involvement of all partners, also 
working with Bridgend PSB. 

11. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 10.1 Annual Report 
The Chair advised that the workshop held at the last meeting has 
received positive feedback, it was particularly useful for all to learn 
the different aspects we are involved in as partners.  The Report is due 
for publication in July; a draft will be brought to the February meeting.  
She advised that she is keen for it to be short and punchy.   Still 
considering what other PSBs are doing, but not much feedback 
currently.  Kirsty Smith advised of a PSB Co-ordinators Network 
meeting being held next week that the Team will be attending; she 
will feed back any progress. All were asked to submit any 
comments/contributions to the Report. 
 
10.2 ACEs Live Lab 
The Chair advised of the offer from the Office of the Future 
Generations Commissioner to host a ‘livelab’, looking into new ways 
of working, and offering their expertise and unblocking any barriers 
with a focus on tackling ACEs. 
Angela Jones commented that she was not sure what value this will 
bring as there are many other pieces of work and training going on in 
this area and there is a risk of duplication. 
 
The Chair hoped that any concerns would be addressed at the first 
meeting. 
Action: All asked to supply comments and contributions for the 
Annual Report in readiness for the draft being brought to February 
SPB. 
 

12. CHAIR’S REVIEW The Chair commented on the full agenda of today’s meeting, and 
praised the workshop given by Data Cymru, and queried whether 
members could see any improvements to the running of future 
meetings. 
 
It was generally felt that the meeting ran well, and within the time 
allowed, worked well.   
 

13. NEXT MEETING The next meeting is scheduled to take place on 19 February 2019 

7
Page 16



 

Agenda Item 3_Minutes and Actions from Meeting 8th January 2019_SPBFEB19 

Action Log: SPB 8th January 2019 

Agenda Item Action Responsible Officer 

5 – PSB Budget and Support Team Propose PSB endorse SPB recommendation relating to 
the PSB Support Team and Budget Papers. 

Chair / Chris Lee 

6 – Performance Management Framework Share the results of the workshop sessions with the PSB 
support team and Objective leads. 
 

Data Cymru: Leanne Teichner / Andrew 
Stephens 

6 – Performance Management Framework Review the findings of the workshop with their delivery / 
strategic groups. 
 

Objective leads 

9 – Updates from other Boards Bring forward discussion around recommendations from 
ICE group to February SPB meeting. 
 

Chair / Simon James 

9 – Updates from other Boards Discussion needed about how to engage with a range of 
audiences around the Annual Report. 

Nadia De Longhi / Simon James 

9 – Update from other Boards Publication and circulation of newsletter Felicity Waters 

11 – Any Other Business Comments and contributions to be brought to February 
SPB. 

ALL 

8

P
age 17



 

Highlight / Exception Report_Thriving Communities_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPBFEB19_5.i 

Well-being 
Objective 

Thriving Communities 
 

Lead Officer Paul Mee RCTCBC / Chris Hole MTCBC 

Key Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 

Date Red Amber Green Not 
Due 

19/02/2019 0 9 37 *29 

08/01/2019 5 4 34  27 
*deadlines amended to reflect progress. 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for detail of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Gurnos 

 Engagement plan agreed and being implemented, with 
2 community events and first meeting of implementation 
group. 

 Stakeholder group established to deliver on the NRW 
(£15k) environmental proposals- extensive community 
consultation planned on proposal.  

 ICF funding secured and plans in place for renovation 
of the SPOC and community room.  

 The Expression of Interest for the 21st Century Schools 
Community Learning Hub funding has been successful 
and moved to next stage of providing a business case 
by the 8th March. This would provide services for the 
Hub and the Arts and Media Centre on the site. 

 Partnership approach in the recruitment of a community 
hub information advice and assistance officer. 

 Discussion and planning progressed in the 
development of the Early Action Together model.  

 ACE Train the Trainer offered and places taken up  
stakeholders and schools  

 
Rhondda Fach 

 Fern Partnership have secured a further two years of 
funding from 1st April 2019 for the Community Co-
ordinator post 

 Building work on the Community Hub has started and 
on track; the childcare setting will be available from 
April 2019 and the library space is due to be completed 
in May. A formal launch of the Hub with all the services 
available is planned for the summer. 

9
Page 18

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Thriving Communities_SPBFEB19 

 Community Hub workforce development sessions have 
started with sessions coordinated until the launch date 
to ensure a one public service approach 

 Neighbourhood Network Group are leading on the     
£10,000 NRW funding 

 ACE training offered to all Primary and Secondary 
schools in the Rhondda Fach Community Zone. 

 Community engagement events have taken place 
throughout January and will continue, led by the 
Community Co-ordinator. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

Gurnos and Rhondda Fach 

 Gurnos- Partnership links made with Wellbeing Merthyr 
(Leisure Trust), and through community consultation a 
plan to explore and establish low take up of provision in 
the area and identify community needs- ie exercise, 
therapeutic services to support older residents and 
increase access to facilities in the area.  

What is working 
well and how does 
this reflect the 5 
Ways of Working? 

 Support from Data Cymru to start to create and design 
and Evaluation Framework.   

 Continue to involve diverse groups in the development 
of the community zone/hub in Rhondda Fach, by 
removing barriers to participation, e.g., young people 
and adults with learning disabilities. 

 The Rhondda Fach Community Zone Implementation 
Group continue to work collaboratively by various 
partners leading on the actions within the first year local 
delivery plan and feeding back in to group. 

 Gurnos area continue to progress their community 
involvement and have a clear plan for engagement 
moving forward 

 Gurnos Youth group coordinated the consultation 
process in the re-naming of the Hub  

 Pupils and parents consulted with on the NRW 
environmental proposals, with wider extensive 
community consulted planned.   

What are the 
priorities for next 
quarter? 

Rhondda Fach 

 Launch the opening of the Community Hub and 
Zone in May 2019 

 Provide specialist training for Hub Staff in order to 
ensure a Single Service approach and IAA model 

 To develop a bespoke Community Zone ACE plan 
aligned to the Strategic ACE plan 

 Deliver local projects with the community to 
enhance natural assets in partnership with NRW 
and measure impact of projects 

 Develop an evaluation framework for the Zones 
 
Gurnos 

10
Page 19

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Thriving Communities_SPBFEB19 

 Formally establish the Neighbourhood Network 

 Develop and deliver on environmental projects with 
NRW funding 

 Implementing engagement and communication plan 
with programme of community events, developing 
connections with spokes  

 Complete the renovations of the SPOC and community 
room  

 Developing a the hub promotional and launch campaign 

 Exploring integrated ways of working with key partners 

 Developing and agreeing an Evaluation framework  

 Identifying funding streams to support the IAA model  

 Confirming the Legacy grant arrangements for 2019-20 
 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the  
challenges / risks? 
What needs to be 
escalated to PSB? 

 
Nothing at this stage. 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms & 
Engagement. 

Nothing at this stage. 
 

 

11
Page 20

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFEB19_Item5i_Thriving Communities_Appendix 2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT1 Local
Number of residents attending community 

engagement events

90 (November 

event)
N/A

30 

(November 

event)

60 

(November

event)

35 (June) Increase
As event 

schedule

Local 

Community 

Implementation 

Group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT2 Local

Awareness and understanding of the role and work 

of the Hub (measures being developed around 

developing a baseline of what people understand of 

the approach)

N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase
As event 

schedule

Local 

Community 

Implementation 

Group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT3 Local
Visitor numbers to Ferndale Hub-specific pages on 

Our Cwm Taf
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

Available 

weekly

Cwm Taf PSB 

support team

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT4 Local Footfall at the Hub following launch N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

Fern Partnership 

/ hub staff and 

volunteers

Thriving 

Communitie

s (RCT)

TC/RCT5 Local

Measuring subjective well-being (short Warwick-

Edinburgh scale) used to assess courses and 

sessions delivered in the Hub, once operational.

N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase
As course 

schedule

Fern Partnership 

/ delivery staff

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT1 Local
Number of residents engaged with at community 

events

90 (November 

event)
N/A

30 

(November 

event)

60 

(November

event)

35 (June) Increase
Event 

schedules

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT2 Local
Number of residents accessing information, advice 

and assistance
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase Weekly

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT3 Local Footfall through the Community Hub N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase Weekly

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Thriving 

Communitie

s (Merthyr)

TC/MT4 Local
Measuring  well-being to assess courses and 

sessions delivered in the Hub.
N/A N/A N/A N/A Increase

As course 

schedule

3Gs Foundation 

group / Gurnos 

community zone 

implementation 

group

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

12

P
age 21



 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPBFeb19_5iv 

Well-being 
Objective  /Group 
Name 

Tackling loneliness and isolation 

Lead Officer Ian Davy, VAMT 

Key 
Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 
 

Date Red Amber Green White 

19/02/2019 0 1 11 14 

08/01/2019 0 1 10 15 

06/11/2018 1 0 8 17 

18/09/2018 1 0 19 6 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for details of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Work is progressing for action D around Information, 
Advice and Assistance. This work doesn’t have a 
clear timeline, so whilst work is planned and being 
explored, it is more important that the PSB’s Well-
being Plan and Social Service and Well-being Board’s 
Regional Plan are trying to achieve the same thing 
and in the same timeline, so this is beyond some 
control. A paper (appendix 3) of recommendations will 
go to TLG on 26 February. This work will also be 
influenced by the health board boundary change and 
the impact that has on the SSWB. 
The reference group has not met since 7 November 
as an agreement was made to not call a meeting 
unless there were updates to discuss.  

 
An agreement to develop a community-led model 
around minimum standards, collaborating with 
Building Communities Trust in Aberfan and Penywaun 
has been progressed. Ian Davy and Kirsty Smith met 
with the Invest Local group of Aberfan in early 
January. Again, if this is taken forward in collaboration 
with the work of the SSWB then there are 
opportunities to work with Invest Local in Caerau 
through BAVO.  
 
Volunteering / forming relationships with schools 
and colleges 

 OurCwmTaf signposts to the volunteering Wales 
and infoengine 

13
Page 22

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

 Signup to infoengine (and Dewis) systems was 
encouraged at the volunteering fayres, and CVCs 
AGMs.  

 Feedback session has taken place with Treorchy 
with a view to develop a volunteering fayre toolkit 
and agree a way forward – e.g. incorporating a ‘get 
involved in your area’ slot on PSE days or contact 
sessions with local groups. Positive feedback also 
received from Merthyr College who would be keen 
to do something similar for volunteering week, 
although the timing may not work as this falls in 
June.  

 Volunteering will be celebrated at the upcoming 
Crystal Trophy awards evening; the PSB website 
will signpost for applications and help to support 
the event. 

Pilot opportunities in Community Hubs 

 Work is still ongoing to engage with communities 
to promote the opportunities, signpost (SPOC) and 
create the neighbourhood network / make the most 
of the community connector roles. Louise is firmly 
established with Fern Partnership, and Ceri has 
recently started in the Gurnos. 

Review the funding and delivery of existing 
befriending services 

 This strongly aligns to actions identified in the 
Regional Plan  

 Appendix 3 shows recommendations linked to 
befriending services, and asks that strong 
consideration is given to include befriending 
services in the 2019/20 Integrated Care Fund 
allocation. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

As a cross-cutting theme, the work in this area is 
interwoven across all Objectives and provides 
opportunities to strengthen alignment to other local 
partnership boards, particularly the RPB. 
 
A collaborative response on Tackling Loneliness and 
Isolation was pulled together for WG consultation on 
Connected Communities 

What is working 
well and how is 
this being done 
differently (5 
WOWs)? 

 Looking to test approaches and mapping in the 
Thriving Community Objective 

 Working in collaboration with colleagues working 
to deliver the Strong Economy through developing 
and strengthening volunteering opportunities, 
through Welsh Baccalaureate work. 

 Wide range of opportunities for integration and 
collaboration between Boards. 

14
Page 23

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the  
challenges / 
risks? 
 
 

 Shared model of social prescribing / community 
brokers 

 Longer-term and more sustainable funding for 
befriending services 

 Variations in the levels of peer support and 
community assets available across Cwm Taf 

 Risk and challenge to making any tangible 
progress on this without buy-in and support across 
both PSB and RPB – need for agreed approach. 
Much of being able to progress work on this 
Objective is dependent on support and buy in from 
SSWB. 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

Confirm a collaborative way forwards – based on the 
recommendations as outlined in Appendix 3.   

What needs to be 
escalated to 
PSB? 
 

 The Potential for the risk of overlap - if no 
resolution at SPB 

 PSB to request updated position on clarity of 
alignment between PSB and RPB 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms and 
Engagement. 

 Partners to share any work being done on an 
individual organisation basis or in collaboration 
that will positively impact on tackling loneliness 
and isolation. 

 Decision around roles and responsibilities across 
the partnership boards on this agenda  

 

 

15
Page 24

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

a.1
Establish a task and finish group and confirm membership and priorities 

from plan. 
Aug-18 Ian Davy

A group based on (47) Expressions of Interest 

submitted to Ian Davy met Sept 11 and are 

scheduled to meet again Nov 7. The initial group 

included representatives from the learning 

disability group looking at L&I under the RPB. 

Objective leads have been invited to the next 

meet to widen the scope, develop a statement 

of intent and agree a way forward

a.2
Look to emulate success stories by undertaking research to establish best / 

good practice in tackling loneliness and isolation
Aug-18 Ian Davy

Research summary produced

a.3
Use neighbourhood networks to find out about activities which seek to 

achieve the Objective

From 

autumn 

2018

ICE

Work underway, initially started through the 

loneliness and isolation survey. VAMT continue 

to support the Gurnos Community Zone work, 

and Interlink the Ferndale one. Seed funding 

based awarded to Thriving Communities areas 

has been used to appoint community connector 

roles / information and advice roles to support 

and strengthen neighbourhood networks (Ceri 

for the Gurnos, Louise in Ferndale)

a.4
Promote activities, through ICE, which will seek to achieve the Objective – 

i.e. tackle loneliness and isolation.
ICE

ICE will support this work, and website will be a 

tool for this

b.1

Audit of PSB partners current activity that contributes to the Objective 

including ·         Public sector core activity; ·         Commissioned services; 

·         Third sector and community led activity

Ian Davy

b.2 Identify PSB Activity and undertake gap analysis to identify priority groups. Ian Davy

b.3
Use gap analysis to inform / be considered as part of Well-being Delivery 

Plans
Ian Davy

Identified good practice could inform future 

work and challenge how loneliness and isolation 

b.4 Review and evaluate result of challenge Apr-19 Ian Davy Not due.

b.5
Undertake review of the way in which tackling of loneliness and isolation 

has been or can be addressed in all three Well-Being Delivery Plans 
Apr-19 Ian Davy

Ongoing - links made across Plans where 

possible and planned work as the second year 

delivery plans are developed.

c.1

Review the “community volunteering” requirement of the Welsh 

Baccalaureate to explore ways in which contributing to the Objective can 

be improved and maximised

Aug-18 Ian Davy

Complete

c.2

To develop draft proposals for 2018/19 regarding the community challenge 

/ skills challenge aspects of the WBQ to enhance young people’s 

experience of volunteering and community action.

12 July 

workshop

Simon James, as event 

3
rd

 sector rep

Complete

c.3
Work with schools to develop a Cwm Taf model for volunteering and 

improve the value of volunteering ‘as a citizen’

Project 

proposal - 

Year One.

Model tested at volunteering fayres (held in 

Treorchy Comp on 25 Sept and Merthyr College 

18 October). Positive feedback from both, 

further work needed to firm up next steps.

c.4 Pilot the model in identified/nominated schools Sep-18 Events taken place in identified pilot areas

Survey findings summarised and shared with 

reference group.  Three key areas emerged: 

befriending, social prescribing / community 

brokers and community support / peer support.                                                 

Part of the November SPB workshop around 

partners' activity regarding well-being picked up 

some current work and good practice which 

could inform work going forwards.

Template 

out 

autumn 

2018 - 

revised 

deadline 

agreed at 

SPB

Actions Milestones

Working with our communities to 

understand what is important to 

them and how together, we can help 

build support to make improvements.

Target volunteering to include people 

who are lonely or isolated, either 

through joining in or receiving 

support.

Connecting people interested in 

volunteering, along with their specific 

interests, resources and skills.  This 

will provide opportunities to children 

and young people as well as adults 

e.g. linking opportunities for young 

people doing the Welsh 

Baccalaureate or Duke of Edinburgh 

awards with local volunteering 

opportunities and encouraging public 

service employees to enable more 

volunteering in public services that 

help inspire others. This links to 

Objective 3.1 (strong economy)

16

P
age 25



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

c.6
Link to ‘workforce development’ workstream and ‘strong economy’ well-

being Objective and developing corporate volunteering

Summer 

2018
Sue Walker

Links established and ways of collaborating 

continue to be explored, including using 

volunteering as a way of preparing for the world 

of work. We will explore work that has been 

done in Bridgend College around their 

volunteering fayre, held 17 October - The 

Community Challenge Festival.

c.7 Pilot a Public Sector Employee Volunteering Scheme Jan-19
Workforce Lead to be 

identified

Picked up in conjunction with the Strong 

Economy delivery group and the Employability 

Pledge.

d.1
Agree (at PSB level) minimum standards of levels of Information, 

Assistance and Advice provision in communities.
Oct-18

Ian Davy

d.2
PSB to determine minimum standards. Look for leads and links with 

Neighbourhood Networks.
Oct-18

To be confirmed

d.3
Taking into account actions a.3 – a.4 and develop proposals for 

communities of greatest need as a pilot area. 

Stage 1: 

April 2019 To be confirmed

Not due.

d.5

Volunteering Wales www.volunteering-wales.net as the tool for recruiting 

volunteers and promoting volunteering opportunities (NB live at the 

moment but not official launched as the full product)

From July 

2018

Ian Davy

d.6
Promote info-engine as the directorate for third sector and well-being and 

community services (NB this will merge with Dewis in July 2018)

From July 

2018

Ian Davy

d.7

Work with neighbourhood networks to use these as a tool for promoting 

and sharing as a way of improving information, advice and assistance (IAA) 

and informing single point of contact (SPOC).

Autumn 

2018
ICE Work ongoing

d.8

Establish alignment between Well-being Plan and Social Services and Well-

Being (SSWB) Regional Plan Ongoing Ian Davy

Links between the two Plans and possible areas 

for working together have been established 

however there is no clear way to progress. A 

further request has been made to review the 

recommendations in the Report on Loneliness 

and Isolation  for TLG inFebruary.

An enhanced 'Be Well in Your Community' has 

been drafted as part of the Community Support 

/ Tackling Loneliness and Isolation agenda 

shared by RPB and PSB proposing joint regional 

approach to Community Support (appendix 3).  

A community led approach to deciding and 

delivering minimum standards of IAA is being 

explored in Aberfan and Penywaun (and 

potentially Caerau), as well as being part of the  

developing Community Zone areas.

Advertise volunteering opportunities 

on behalf of community groups, third 

sector, public service organisations 

and businesses.

Infoengine widget has been added to the 

recently launched engagement pages on Our 

Cwm Taf: www.ourcwmtaf.wales/our-

community-matters / 

www.eincwmtaf.cymru/our-community-matters                                                                               

Along with DEWIS, these systems will support 

the SPOC approach online for Cwm Taf, and at 

the two Community Hubs. Work was also 

undertaken at the volunteering fayres to sign 

groups up to the system

Connecting people interested in 

volunteering, along with their specific 

interests, resources and skills.  This 

will provide opportunities to children 

and young people as well as adults 

e.g. linking opportunities for young 

people doing the Welsh 

Baccalaureate or Duke of Edinburgh 

awards with local volunteering 

opportunities and encouraging public 

service employees to enable more 

volunteering in public services that 

help inspire others. This links to 

Objective 3.1 (strong economy)

17

P
age 26



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

d.9
Cwm Taf PSB Support Team and SSWB Regional Commissioning Unit (when 

in place) to develop jointly owned delivery mechanisms.

Once 

SSWB 

team in 

place Ian Davy

Not due, Commissioning team is in the process 

of being appointed. Impact of health board 

boundary changes also need to be considered.

d.10

Engage co-productively with the Cwm Taf Social Value Forum (SVF) to 

establish a solution focused model for third sector delivery. Ongoing Ian Davy

Social Value Forum took place on 11 December 

(focusing on children and young people) but 

featuring an update from Claire Williams on 

'Stay Well in Your Community' and sharing the 

statement of intent around 'Be Well in Your 

Community'. Feedback and learnings are being 

considered.

d.11

Work with Valleys Landscape Park to pilot the green spaces / social 

prescribing projects

By 2021 

(VTF 

timescale) Ian Davy

Kirsty Harrington has contacted CVCs around 

establishing peer-to-peer networks of  

community groups to support the VRP initiatve. 

There will be community conference held in 

February.

Advertise volunteering opportunities 

on behalf of community groups, third 

sector, public service organisations 

and businesses.

18

P
age 27



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

e.1
Work towards a public service partner arrangement that will support all 

volunteers in Cwm Taf to obtain DBS checks at Passport level
Apr-19 Ian Davy

CVCs consider this to be core work. List of 

'Trusted Providers' in Cwm Taf obtained and 

shared with Safeguarding who may be better 

suited to take this forward

e.2

Develop a model through Corporate Social Responsibility, to provide a 

central advice and support offer for Cwm Taf voluntary organisations for 

legislative compliance and good practice, e.g., health and safety, 

safeguarding, GDPR, Equalities.

Apr-19 Ian Davy

Not due.

Help with the official parts of 

volunteering e.g. Disclosure and 

Barring Service (DBS) checks, advice 

on supervision and health and safety 

risk assessments.

19

P
age 28



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Loneliness 

and Isolaton L&I1
National

National Survey: Percentage of people feeling 

lonely
17% 20% 17%

Decrease

Loneliness 

and Isolaton L&I2
National

National Survey: Percentage of people (aged16+) 

volunteering
28% 21% 22%

Increase

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

20

P
age 29



1 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

  
 
Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board 
 

 

 
Report to TLG  -  January 2019 
 
Title of Report - Tackling Loneliness and Isolation 
 

 
Author:  Ian Davy 
 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to brief colleagues on work carried out as part of the 
“Tackling Loneliness and Isolation” cross cutting objective in the Cwm Taf Well Being 
Plan and to ensure engagement and alignment with the Cwm Taf Regional Plan 
 
A draft of the paper was presented to APDIG on 9th January. This version of the 
paper has been enhanced by comments at the meeting.  
 
APDIG were very supportive and recognised the need for more coordination around 
this theme and for all SSWB delivery groups/workstreams/ project leads to have to 
consider in their plans and work programme what they are doing to help address the 
issues as they are cross cutting. The group also welcomed the links with work in 
Bridgend and suggested some further information could be added to the report about 
their Prevention and Wellbeing Group/Strategy. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Members of the Partnership Board are asked to: 

 Note the research evidence and critical success factors summarised in the 
report 

 Note the Scottish Government Strategy and their priorities and indicators 

 Discuss the Next Steps 

 Endorse the Recommendations 
 
BACKGROUND/INTRODUCTION 
 
1 Context 
 
1.1 “Tackling Loneliness and Isolation” is a cross cutting objective in the Cwm Taf 
Well Being Plan. Ian Davy is the lead officer for this objective and responsible for 
reporting on progress to the Cwm Taf PSB. 
 

21
Page 30



2 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

The long term vision is that; 

 People will feel more connected and less isolated;  

 People will be more active;  

 There will be increased community capacity to tackle loneliness and isolation; 
and  

 People will have better mental health and well-being 
 
1.2 Welsh Government is consulting on their intention to produce a tackling 
loneliness and social isolation strategy called ‘Connected Communities’. The closing 
date was 15th January and they will publish their strategy by 31st March 2019. 
Attached as an appendix is the Cwm Taf UHB response to the consultation. 
 
1.3 There has already been research led by the third sector, into loneliness and 
isolation in Cwm Taf, using the lived experience of older people (story telling through 
SenseMaker) entitled “From Isolation to Integration”. 
 
2 Research Evidence 
 
The PSB Support Team has reviewed evidence and some key points that emerge 
are: 
 

 Loneliness takes different forms; 
- Emotional loneliness is the absence of a significant other with whom a close 

attachment is formed (a partner or close friend) 
- Social loneliness is the lack of a wider social network of friends, neighbours or 

colleagues 
- Transient loneliness can be temporary, linked to life events 
- Chronic tends to be more long term loneliness 
 

 Loneliness is just as likely to be experienced by young people as older people 
 

 Lifestyle patterns can contribute to loneliness, as well as ethnic group 
 

 Some people are physically or geographically isolated and alone – this doesn’t 
necessarily mean that they feel lonely or socially isolated 

 

 Some people may have a large and varied circle of friends, family and 
neighbours but may still experience feelings of loneliness 

 

 Those at greatest need of intervention are rarely those who are able to, or 
choose to take part in schemes or groups 
 

 Services that help to reduce isolation and loneliness include 
- Information and signposting services 
- Support for individuals 
- Group interventions 
- Social and health promotion interventions 
- Wider community involvement  
- Community referral e.g. Community Connectors 

22
Page 31



3 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

 

 Users report high satisfaction with services that increase their social interaction 
and community involvement, taking up or going back to hobbies and participating 
in wider community activities 

 

 Longitudinal studies reported that older people who were part of a social group 
intervention had a greater chance of survival than those who had not received 
such a service 
 

 Users of Community Connecter/Coordinator services weren’t as socially isolated 
 

 Befriending services are a cost effective way of reducing depression 
 

 Telephone supported approaches were not effective in reducing loneliness and 
partially effective in reducing social isolation 
 

 A reciprocal relationship exists between loneliness and a person’s health to the 
detriment of their wellbeing.  

 
3 Critical Success Factors 
 
In their review of evidence, the PSB Support Team identified the following critical 
success factors; 
 

 Identifying whether the approach/intervention is aiming to tackle loneliness OR 
social isolation 
 

 Everyone can be affected by loneliness and/or isolation – irrespective of age, 
race, gender, social group, religion etc. Thus universal responses and 
approaches may not always be suitable 

 

 Understanding different types of loneliness and their causes in order to tailor 
prevention and intervention measures 

 

 Addressing and preparing for universal life points that could lead to feelings of 
loneliness, e.g. bereavement or retirement 

 

 Recognising that change happens on the ground – public sector has a role to 
play but communities should lead 

 

 Build on what’s already existing in communities, and where possible, deliver 
through existing channels, groups and boards 

 

 Acknowledging and devoting resources to the recruitment, training and retention 
of volunteers is vital 

 

 Community based schemes can work in tandem with other commissioned 
interventions that focus on addressing the underlying causes of an individual’s 
sense of loneliness 

23
Page 32



4 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

 

 Adopting a participatory approach which places local people at the heart of 
everything, with locally developed schemes tailored to the needs and 
circumstances of the local area 

 

 Discussion around tackling loneliness and/or isolation should be framed in a 
positive way and this should be reflected in the work undertaken 

 

 Promoting social prescribing as a tool to improve well-being, as well as a way of 
tackling/combating loneliness and isolation 

 

 Making projects like befriending services, more sustainable and less reliant on 
short-term funding streams. Trying to ensure the stability and flexibility of funding 
for third sector organisations 

 

 Integrated working through community planning partnerships 
 

4 The Scottish Government Strategy 
 
The Scottish Government launched their strategy in January 2018 
 
4.1 They identified particular groups at increased risk of social loneliness and 

isolation: 
- The socio-economically disadvantaged 
- Young mothers 
- Those with poor physical and mental health 
- People with disabilities 
- Children with few friends 
- Those living alone 
- Those who have been bereaved 
- Men over 50 
- Minority ethnic groups 
- Those from LGBTI communities 
- Carers 

 
4.2 Priority One is ‘Empower Communities to Lead’ 

- Community empowerment and public service reform 
- Building cohesive and resilient communities, promoting inclusive growth 

and championing community participation 
- Investing resources, with a greater emphasis on promoting the 

sustainability of funded projects 
 
4.3 Priority Two is ‘Play our Part’ 

- Reducing stigma 
- Encouraging kindness and contributing to creating kinder communities 
- Tackling poverty and addressing inequalities 
- Promoting and improving health and well-being 
- Giving our young people the best start in life 
- Promoting the role of the third sector and volunteering 
- Creating high quality places where people feel happy and safe to interact 

24
Page 33



5 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

- Promote heritage and culture 
- Improve infrastructure, especially accessible transport 

 
4.4 Outcome Measures 

- Percentage feeling lonely/lonely sometimes 
- Percentage of adults having contact with family, friends and neighbours 

less than once or twice 
- Percentage of people having limited regular contact in their 

neighbourhoods 
- Percentage who feel that they don’t have a strong sense of belonging to 

their local community 
- Percentage of people who exhibit a degree of social mistrust which is 

connected to the level of social contact and feelings of belonging to their 
local community 

- Percentage of people who volunteer 
- Percentage of people involved in some kind of community action to 

improve their local area 
- Children vulnerable to social isolation because of poor peer support or 

bullying 
 
5 Survey – What has Impact? 
 
A mapping exercise of the third sector in Cwm Taf resulted in 53 responses. They 
considered the following has the most impact; 

 Creating groups/services to bring people together  

 Suitable, affordable transport is a barrier 

 Community Connectors / GPSOs 

 Befriending 

 Community Centres / venues 

 Self-management / peer support 

 Access to advice and information 
 
This mirrors the findings from the research evidence summarised above. It appears 
that a variety of approaches is needed. In a lot of cases it means understanding or, 
at least, better signposting to, existing groups and services. 
 

ASSESSMENT/GOVERNANCE AND RISK ISSUES  
 
A risk identified in the PSB is lack of alignment and duplication with the SSWB 
Partnership and the Cwm Taf Regional Plan. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Recommendations 
 
1 Social Prescribing and Community Coordination/Connectors 
 

A shared understanding and regional collaborative approach is required at a 
strategic level. This must be developed in partnership and endorsed by the 

25
Page 34



6 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf SSWB Partnership Board and delivered by the third sector working 
closely with community organisations.1  
 
Following recent discussions with colleagues in primary care and public health 
who have been carrying out preparatory work regarding the Transformation 
Proposal - it is recommended that; 

 A Social Prescribing Task and Finish Group is established led by Sara 
Thomas and reports to the Enhancing Community Cluster Workstream 

 A “concept paper” is produced which will detail our shared approach. The 
paper will make the case for two distinctive but connected role functions 
which are broadly speaking; 

o Social Prescribers – typically holding caseloads based in primary 
care settings or community hubs 

o Community Coordinators – acting as brokers between citizens and 
community groups and potentially developing new community 
support / services / assets. 

 
2 Befriending services 
 

Befriending services must be supported to be more sustainable. The current 
system of short-term funding or slippage is not conducive to developing robust 
support services of this kind. It can put existing services at risk and reduces 
the opportunity to extend and expand opportunities.  
 
ICF slippage has been utilised to fund befriending services for the past two 
years and as this is no longer a possibility current provision will end in March 
2019. 
 
It is recommended that; 

 Strong consideration is given including provision in the new 2019/20 ICF 
allocation.  

 The CVCs will gather view from the sector about whether existing 
schemes roll forward or need to be reviewed or considered in context of 
any other schemes funded from alternative streams.  

 
3 Developing community support / community assets 

 
3.1 A shared understanding and regional approach is required for investing 

in and developing community support and improving people’s wellbeing 
at the preventative level. Critical to this is the embedding of early 
identification of, and support for those who are experiencing loneliness 
and/or isolation or are at risk of doing so. 

 
Such an approach includes the need for all public services and 
commissioned providers to play an active role in delivering information, 
advice and assistance, in line with the draft ‘Be Well in Your 

                                                 
1 There is a duty to promote and encourage third sector and social value organisations in the delivery of 

wellbeing services in relation to the SSWB Act (see Social Value Outcomes toolkit). 
http://walescoop.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/walescoop-social-values-FPE-5.09-2.pdf. 

 

26
Page 35

http://walescoop.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/walescoop-social-values-FPE-5.09-2.pdf


7 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Community’ model (attached). This builds on existing community 
assets and strengths and has three central themes; 

 
a) The right level of community support at the right time to support 

citizens and communities to become better connected and more 
resilient 
 

b) Focus on early help for those with emerging difficulties 
 

c) Pathways from community support into integrated public services 
for those who are really struggling 

 
3.2 Initial discussions have been held with several communities including 

working with the Building Communities Trust (BCT) with a view to 
developing their “Invest Local” projects in Aberfan and Penywaun. 
There has also been discussion about a partnership approach of 
engaging lonely and isolated people through the PSB Information, 
Communications and Involvement Group (or ICI, formerly ICE).  
Further discussions with community members in Aberfan and 
Penywaun are programmed for the near future.   

 
In Bridgend County, initial discussions have already started with BAVO, 
BCT and the “Invest Local Caerau” partnership to consider piloting 
work to develop a networked and resilient community through capacity 
building and community development approaches.  

 
4 Recommendation from APDIG 
 

A recommendation from APDIG that all groups consider loneliness and 
isolation as part of their plans/work programme as it is a cross cutting issue 
that affects all groups but solutions may be different depending on the service 
group etc.  

 
5 Further Considerations 
 

 BAVO manages a ‘Community Companions’ scheme’ which, in its next 
phase, will expand its offer to include young people. Further discussion is 
required with Cwm Taf partners to understand the approach taken by the 
various sectors within Bridgend County and to integrate plans and 
developments where possible.  
 

 The work to date, based on national research, tends to focus on older 
people.  But children, young, people and families, experience the same 
issues in relation to loneliness and isolation. Support for young people in 
the community is limited. 
 

 There is a lack of bereavement support services and investment has been 
identified as a priority need in Cwm Taf. 

 
 

27
Page 36

http://www.bavo.org.uk/over-50s/65


8 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Appendices 
 
1 Response to the WG consultation “Connected Communities: Tackling 

Loneliness and Social Isolation” 
 
2 Draft “Be Well in Your Community” model 
 

28
Page 37



Agenda Item 6_Performance Management/Evaluation Framework_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf SPB Outcomes Workshop 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Healthy Lives 

 

Well-being Plan Objective To help people live long and healthy lives and overcome any challenge 

 

Proposed Impact Statement:  People in Cwm Taf live long and healthy lives and overcome any 

challenge 

 

Outcome statements: 

1. Healthy life expectancy rates for the people of Cwm Taf are increased  

2. Health inequalities across Cwm Taf are redcued  

3. Children in Cwm Taf are more resilient 

Interim outcomes: 

a. Health inequalities within the first 1000 days are reduced 

b. Fewer children in Cwm Taf encounter adverse childhood experiences 

c. The number of unplanned pregnancies is reduced  

4. The rate of the population who have 4 or 5 healthy behaviours is increased 

5. The percentage of the elderly experiencing frailty is reduced  

 

29
Page 38



Agenda Item 6_Performance Management/Evaluation Framework_SPBFEB19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Strong Economy 

 

Well-being Plan Objective: To grow a strong local economy with sustainable transport that attracts 

people to live, work and play in Cwm Taf 

 

Proposed Impact Statement:  Cwm Taf has a strong local economy with sustainable transport that 

attracts people to live, work and play in Cwm Taf 

 

 Outcome statements: 

1. More people in Cwm Taf are economically active 

2. More people in Cwm Taf are in employment 

3. The quality of employment opportunities in Cwm Taf is increased  

4. Skill levels within Cwm Taf are improved 

5. Local transport links are improved 

6. Increased use of Cwm Taf’s tourism, leisure and heritage provision (both from within and 

outside Cwm Taf) 

7. The attainment of school age children in Cwm Taf is increased (and they achieve their full 

potential)  

30
Page 39



Agenda Item 6_Performance Management/Evaluation Framework_SPBFEB19 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Loneliness and Isolation 

Well-being Plan Objective: We will work in new ways to channel the undoubted strengths of our 

communities, including volunteering to tackle more effectively the loneliness and isolation which 

often exists within many of them 

Proposed Impact Statement:  People in Cwm Taf do not feel lonely or isolated (there was a view 

that this could be framed positively e.g. People in Cwm Taf feel connected) 

Outcome statements 

1. People in Cwm Taf feel more connected (Refer to National Survey for Wales) 

2. There are less isolated people in Cwm Taf 

3. There are less lonely people in Cwm Taf  

4. People in Cwm Taf have increased feelings of well-being/happiness 

 

31
Page 40



 

Agenda item 7_ Statutory Annual Reportv1 _SPBFebruary19 
 

Annual Report 

Reflecting on the year 

We published our Well-being Plan in May 2018. In the year since then, we have started to deliver on 

the immediate steps for our Well-being Objectives, made progress in some areas and seen 

improvements in how we work together to collectively make a difference, not just now but in the 

future.  

In delivering on our Plan, we want to build on the learnings from the Well-being Assessment. This 

took an assets based approach, meaning that we looked at what works well in Cwm Taf, what people 

are proud of and what we can do to strengthen and further develop these.  

The Act challenges us to think and work differently. We want to be brave and push for real 

innovation, and make sure everything we do has the communities of Cwm Taf at the centre. This 

Annual Report is the opportunity for us to celebrate our achievements but also challenge ourselves 

on how much of a difference we are making.  

 

  

Commented [SK1]: Use as the Chair’s intro / review? 

Commented [TL2]: Potential to say something about 
trialling the People’s Platform as one of the key things said at 
the meeting was that the feedback on WB Assessments was 
the lack of citizen’s voice.  Coupled with our/Simon’s 
Citizen’s Panel. 

Commented [TL3]: Something more around greatest 
achievements/greatest challenges – chance to be frank and 
honest about the real barriers to innovation and change, 
such as, cultural change, leadership and time. 

32
Page 41

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda item 7_ Statutory Annual Reportv1 _SPBFebruary19 
 

Progress against Objectives: (half a page each / take from delivery plans and highlight 

exception report) 

Thriving Communities 

What we said we would do in the immediate steps: “Develop Community Zones as an area or place 

based approach focussing support to improve outcomes for our areas with the greatest challenges”. 

To achieve this, we have: 

 Involved our communities, working with them to understand local needs and how we can 

work together to create thriving Community Zones (box of video from Ferndale November 

2017 event, stack of photos from engagement meets – see FGC, photos of Louise / Mel as 

Community Connectors with a link to web article about them?) 

 established two Community Hubs within the identified Zones of Upper Rhondda Fach and 

the Gurnos. These Hubs have received investment, resulting in xxxx (photos of 

developments) 

 started work to improve the green spaces in the area (outline of greening project proposals). 

Links to the Ferndale and Gurnos Webpages to find out more 

 

 

Healthy People 

What we said we would do in the immediate steps: “Work with our communities to make sure 

everyone has the best chance to live long and happy lives e.g. First 1000 days, working with older 

people to stay fit and healthy for as long as possible” 

To achieve this we have: 

 Early years co-construction 

 F1000D 

 Vulnerability profiling 

 ACE informed workforce 

 

 

  

Commented [SK4]: Why? Assessment told us people value 
the environment. Positive environment for children / play. 
Community ownership and involvement in something 
tangible and visible. Instilling pride and developing interest 
in natural environment. 

33
Page 42

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda item 7_ Statutory Annual Reportv1 _SPBFebruary19 
 

Strong Economy 

What we said we would do in the immediate steps: “Stimulate and boost the aspirations and skills of 

our people to meet public and private sector career opportunities.” 

To achieve this we have: 

 Collaborated with partners to create a shared Employability Pledge 

 Worked with schools to improve opportunities for our future workforce and prevent skills 

shortages from happening 

 Undertaken the first review of tourism across Cwm Taf so that we can think long term, and 

develop and invest in important areas for the future 

 

 

 

 

 

Against our cross-cutting theme of tackling loneliness and isolation 

What we said we would do: “We will work in new ways to channel the undoubted strengths of our 

communities, including volunteering to tackle more effectively the loneliness and isolation which 

often exists within many of them” 

To achieve this we have: 

 Undertaken a review of what services are available in Cwm Taf and asked what challenges 

they faced 

 Started to develop a model for improving volunteering opportunities for our young people, 

linked to the Welsh Baccalaureate and Duke of Edinburgh (photos from Treorchy and 

Merthyr College) 

 Started discussions, in collaboration with Building Communities Trust, to pilot approaches in 

two areas around developing ‘connected communities’. 

  

Commented [SK5]: To what end? Ensuring public sector 
bodies offer equal opportunities when it comes to learning, 
training and employment. Develop a designed ‘Pledge on a 
page’ for website - link 

Commented [SK6]: Link to diagnostic review 

Commented [SK7]: Developments…so what? Speak to Ian 

34
Page 43

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda item 7_ Statutory Annual Reportv1 _SPBFebruary19 
 

 

Key Achievements of the PSB: 

The success of any PSB is how involved partners share experiences, learn from each other and 

discover new and better ways of working together. This first year has been as much about building 

those relationships within and between organisations as the starting on delivery – to build a strong 

platform to springboard future action, create an environment of constructive challenge and tackle 

priorities in a different way. Our Well-being Assessment took an asset based approach and this is 

something we’re keen to maintain – this means we want to build on what we love about Cwm Taf, 

what works well in the area and work out how we can do more of it.  

Not just the ‘what’, but the how – esp around how we have: 

 Collaborated with others (internally and externally) to meet WBO 

 Involved our community and tried to reflect the diversity of it 

 Thought Long Term, balancing short term needs with safeguarding the ability to meet future 

needs 

 Acted to Prevent problems from getting worse or occurring 

 Integrated work to meet other well-being objectives (e.g. of individuals) or the w-b goals 

 Worked on a framework to measure how we are making a difference, using Logic Model 

     

 

 

Highlights / at a glance 

 Ministerial visit 

 Young Persons Plan / Spring Conference(s) 

 ACEs live lab 

 Encouraging healthy behaviours  / 1SC (note this is short to medium term in the Plan) 

 Social Prescribing 

 Vulnerability Profiling – preventative model 

 Shared accomodation work (Cushman and Wakefield / Chris) 

 Maybe some examples from The Art of the Possible? 

 Progress towards our ambition: We work as One Public Service, with our communities, to 

support the development of resilient communities that are informed, connected, active and 

resourced and have the ability to adapt to and influence change and improve wellbeing 

 We are taking steps towards developing an information sharing protocol between agencies 

meaning that services in Cwm Taf will be able to offer a more joined up system and enable 

people to get the help they need when they need it.  

 

 

 

 

 

Commented [DLN8]: A bit shmaltzy… but you probably 
get what I mean…. Was there anything we could steal from 
the original “psb commitment handbook” thing that was 
drawn up in Sally’s time? 

Commented [DLN9]: I can’t put my hand on the 
spreadsheet we drew up after the workshop…. I think there 
were some bits in there we can either use here to 
demonstrate the outcomes listed or in the future 
opportunities below? 

Commented [SK10]: From Well-being Plan 

35
Page 44

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda item 7_ Statutory Annual Reportv1 _SPBFebruary19 
 

 

Journey Checker 

We are still learning; we are a new body dealing with a new Act and new ways of working. This isn’t 

easy and we are learning lessons along the way. We are working to improve how we work with our 

citizens and want to have an ongoing conversation but we know we need to get better at this, and 

improve the range of people that we involve in the work. In the first year, the focus has been on 

putting systems and processes in place but we are investing the time now to try put the best 

foundations in place for the PSB. This has included establishing a dedicated PSB support team, 

showing a commitment from partners and dedication to working in a new way. 

We need to challenge ourselves more around the difference we are making and the outcomes we 

want to see. We have started collaborating with Data Cymru to develop a ‘Logic Model’ for the PSB. 

Through this work we will have a clear idea of what we want to achieve with our communities, and a 

better understanding of how we can get there. We will also be able to better judge whether we are 

making a difference, and where progress may not be happening as hoped through developing 

(evaluation framework) 

 

 

 

 

 

Moving forwards 

The Well-being Plan sets out our aims moving forwards. That said, we need to make sure that what 

we try to deliver remains challenging but relevant, makes a real difference to our residents, and 

takes into account changing trends and uncertainties, such as Brexit and the health board boundary 

of Cwm Taf changing to include Bridgend.  

The focus for the coming year will be: 

Fall out of the second year delivery plans / Logic Model interim outcomes 

 

 

 

 

 

For more information about how you can get involved and have your say on the PSB, please visit 

www.ourcwmtaf.wales  

Commented [SK11]: Needs to sound more inspiring / less 
business as usual 

36
Page 45

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda Item8v_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Update from Boards 
 
Agenda No SPBFEB19_8.v 

Name of Board 
*Delete as 
required* 

 Cwm Taf SSWB Regional Partnership 
Board 

 

Chair / Lead 
Officer  
*Delete as 
required*  

Rachel Rowlands ( Chair)  
Nicola Davies Interim Regional Lead  -  Until 28th 
February  
Sarah Mills from 11th March  

Current focus for 
the Board 

 

 

 Delivering the year 1 priorities of the Regional 
(Area) Plan 2018-23 

 Planning for the changes needed from April 
2019 when there will be a new regional SSWB 
footprint that includes RCT, Merthyr Tydfil and 
Bridgend. 

 Developing  and delivering the region’s 
Transformation plans in response to “A 
Healthier Wales” 

 Developing the Region’s ICF Investment Plan 
for 2019/20  

 

Example of good 
practice / a good 
news story.   
 

Well attended Regional Workshop held on 7th 
February to share views and draw on experience to 
date in order to shape and steer the effective direction 
and operation of the revised RPB. 
Sessions considered 

 Vision and aspirations 

 Working principles of new partnership 

 Governance  

 Citizens Voice and Social Value  
 
The event was very positive with all partners agreeing 
there was significant common ground and experience 
to build on in terms of ambition, commitment, 
priorities and policies. New name for RPB will be 
Cwm Taf Morgannwg.   
 

Challenges for 
consideration by 
the SPB 

 Alignment of responsibilities and work 
between RPB and PSB  -   
National events provide opportunity to explore 
alignment issues -  Health and Social Care 
Leadership event on 12th March focusing on A 
Healthier Wales and the theme of Prevention; 
WG RPB/PSB workshop on 20th March 
“Reflecting on emerging arrangements.” 

37
Page 46

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Agenda Item8v_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

 Sustaining and mainstreaming successful 
projects funded using non recurrent 
allocations such as ICF.  

 

Performance  All ICF schemes are monitored quarterly 
including formal reporting to WG.  

 The Area Plan Delivery and Implementation 
Group (APDIG) meets monthly to oversee 
progress in delivering the Regional Area Plan 

 The Transformation Leadership Group (TLG) 
meets monthly to lead and drive regional 
business, making recommendations to RPB 
which meets bi monthly.  

 Annual report for Social Value Forum required 
by WG at end of March and RPB Annual 
Report required by 30th June  

 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

 Delivering actions identified by the Partnership 
Workstream relating to the Boundary change 
programme in readiness for new RPB from 1st 
April ,including clarification of ICF allocations 
and financial commitments for schemes 
relating to Bridgend 

 Delivering next steps identified in RPB 
Workshop held on 7th February  

 Recruitment to new Regional support team  

 Development of the new Region’s ICF 
Investment plan by the end of March 2019.  

 Commence Implementation of the Cwm Taf 
“Stay Well in Your Community” Transformation 
plans. 

 

Challenges to be 
escalated to PSB? 
 

 
None at this time  
 
 
 
 

 

38
Page 47

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


Maximising opportunities for prevention 
in Cwm Taf’s Public Services

Prof. Kelechi Nnoaham
Director of Public Health

Six Priorities

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
39

P
age 48



Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
40

P
age 49



POPULATION HEALTH AND WELLBEING

Health care Wider determinants

IMTP
2018-2021

UHB Clinical 
Services 
Strategy 

Area Plan & 
Social Care 

Delivery 

Well Being 
Plan

Wellbeing Assessments & Population Needs Assessments

10-15% impact 85-90% impact

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
41

P
age 50



Intelligence through data

Understanding our population better 
through smarter use of data

The right Early Years offer

Effectively integrating care for 
children aged 0-7years across health, 

education and social care

Primary Prevention

Improving Primary Prevention –
services (some universal, others 

targeted) that reach people in our 
communities to ensure they don’t end

up needing our help 

Secondary Prevention

Improving Secondary Prevention –
early intervention services that focus 
on those who are now need our help

to ensure their need does not escalate

Tertiary Prevention

Improving Tertiary Prevention – focus 
on established users of our services to 

improve their quality of life and 
reduce how often they use our help

Greater Integration and co-ordination

Joining up services & care for our 
communities, recognising and making 

use of their strengths/assets  

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
42

P
age 51



What?

Why?

How?

• Understanding of population need, not just demand for services
• Understanding of strengths and assets in our communities  

• Current system has gaps and causes wastage
• Responding to demand, rather than to need, produces and widens 

inequalities  

• Population Segmentation and risk stratification 
• Data Sharing protocols across public services
• Growing our ‘Big Data’ infrastructure and capabilities

Who?

• PSB to signal strategic support 
• Health and Local Government to lead
• Police, Fire & Rescue also key agencies 

Intelligence through Data

What will success look 
like?

• Across all our Public 
Services, we use data 
predictively to plan 
services and make them 
joined up, co-ordinated 
and person-centred

• Cwm Taf Public Services 
use information 
technology to optimise, 
and not just document, 
care 

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
43

P
age 52



Segment 10 –65+ yrs., Multiple LTCs

Proportion of total 
population 

Proportion of total cost Type of cost Care Utilisation

(High overall need)

Population
Average cost 

per capita
Total spend

Non-Elective 
In-Patient 
Episodes

5,392 £2,727 £14,705,032 2,683

6.77%

28.82%

-200%

-150%

-100%

-50%

0%

50%

100%

150%

200%
ELIP NEIP OPFA OPFU ED attend GP Visit Prescribing

 Assessment – older adults with multiple chronic conditions, who have high care needs 
 Care utilisation – high overall care use across multiple settings suggests these people have 

complex care needs likely to benefit from integrated multidisciplinary care and case 
management 

 Next step – (1) risk stratify this segment based on ‘probability of high pharmacy cost’, 
‘probability of emergency admission’, probability of inpatient hospitalisation’ and ‘probability 
of extended hospitalisation’, and ‘probability of High Total Cost’, (2) profile each segment-
stratum by (a) mean age, (b) prevalence of key chronic conditions, (c) prevalence of ‘high risk 
attributes’, (d) population size, (e) proportion in residential/nursing homes, and (f) 
deprivationAgenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19

44

P
age 53



High 

Risk 

Moderate 
Risk

Low Risk

Number of 
people

Mean age 
(years)

Mean 
Deprivatio
n index

Prevalence of key chronic conditions Prevalence of High Risk Attributes

Proportion 
in nursing 
or 
residential 
care

270 81 2.96 7.41%

810 80 2.96 4.44%

4,312 75 2.76 1.02%

Segment 10 – Probability of 
emergency hospital admission 

in the next 12 months

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%
90%

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
45

P
age 54



What?

Why?

How?

• Integrated health, education and social care for children aged 0-7yrs
• Includes focus on understanding the causes of ACES – preventing 

them and mitigating their effects where they have already occurred  

• Much evidence exists for a life course approach to wellbeing 
• Where choices need to be made, getting it right in the early years –

preconception, pregnancy and up to age 7 – offers value for money

• Early Years co-construction project & Vulnerability profiling 
• MAMSS, BumpStart, Breastfeeding, comprehensive weight 

management services

Who?
• Health and Local Government to lead
• SW Police and P&C Commissioner a key agency 

The Right Early Years Offer

What will success look 
like?

• In Cwm Taf, maternity 
units, health visitors, 
school nurses, schools 
and social workers work 
in an integrated 
‘commission’  

• Cwm Taf public service 
workers are ACE-aware

• We achieve improved 
outcomes for pregnant 
mothers and children

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
46

P
age 55



What?

Why?

How?

• Involves a focus on services (some universal, others targeted) that 
reach people in our communities to ensure they don’t end up 
needing our help 

• Reduces burden of need and makes public services sustainable.
• Many diseases and care need can be prevented if well-known lifestyle 

risk factors were eliminated

• Healthy employment, Transport (active and safe travel), Green space 
& Leisure services, Holistic spatial planning, Immunisation 
programmes, MECC, Inverse Care Law programme, Falls prevention

Who?
• Health, Local Government, NRW and SWFRS to lead
• All PSB member organisations and all employers in Cwm Taf are key

Primary Prevention

What will success look 
like?

• All Cwm Taf Public 
Services demonstrate a 
flattened or reduced 
trajectory of demand  

• Healthy Life Expectancy 
continues to increase 
and the gap in HLE 
between the least and 
most deprived in our 
communities narrows

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
47

P
age 56



What?

Why?

How?

• Involves identifying need early and intervening on time to ensure that 
the need does not escalate

• Hinges on systems and processes being in place to identify need early  

• Once need is established, it is more likely to escalate than to de-
escalate without intervention

• Intervening early is more cost-effective than doing so later

• Warmer/Safer Homes, Public Protection and regulatory services, 
Inverse Care Law programme, ACES work  

Who?
• Health, Local Government, NRW and SWFRS to lead
• All PSB member organisations are key

Secondary Prevention

What will success look 
like?

• Healthy Life Expectancy 
continues to increase 
and the gap in HLE 
between the least and 
most deprived in our 
communities narrows

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
48

P
age 57



So what are the possibilities for the PSB?

• Build on the segmentation and risk stratification pilot conducted in 
the Rhondda population

• Frame future work programme to deliver on these work streams 

• Establish baseline on these work streams in the next iteration of 
wellbeing assessments 

Agenda Item 9_Shift Towards Prevention_SPBFEB19
49

P
age 58



Cwm Taf SPB 
Late Papers Pack 

19 February 2019, 14:00 - 17:00
SWFRS HQ, Llantrisant, CF72 8LX.
Parking is available on-site. Please note ID will be required for access. 

Page 59

www.ourcwmtaf.wales


                                                        

 

 

Note for Board Members 

Agenda Item 5.i – Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan – Delivery/Thriving Communities 

The following document was omitted from the original pack: 

Thriving Communities – Performance Monitoring Report, Appendix 1.   

This should follow after page 11 of the pack, before Appendix 2, to form part of the report for this 

Objective. 

1
Page 60



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

RHONDDA FACH

1.1.1a
Create a Cwm Taf Strategic Group (Objective 1) along with Terms of 

Reference and governance structure
Mar-17

Paul Mee and Chris 

Hole

Completed.

1.1.1b

Engage with and feedback to the community in the identified area through 

a Cwm Taf ‘Our Community Matters Event’ to identify what the community 

values and how things can be improved. 

Nov-17

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1c
Identify a Hub in the pilot area acting as a single point of contact (SPOC) for 

those requiring information, advice, support and intervention.
Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1d Confirm Community Hub model and Anchor organisation Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1e
Create a Rhondda Fach Task and Finish group to produce the plans of 

Community Hub, delivery timeline and associated costs
Jan-18 Paul Mee

Completed.

1.1.1f

Identify from feedback from the community, key services to be delivered 

from the Hub, including well-being services e.g. Library, childcare, 

employment support

Jan-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1g

Deliver four consultation events in the Rhondda Fach area with the 

community in both the proposed Hub building and the library with a focus 

on sharing the plan layouts and services that could be delivered by the 

Hub.

19th Feb 

to the 

19
th 

March 

2018

RCT Consultation 

team, Claire 

Hutcheon, Wendy 

Edwards, Fern 

Partnership

Completed.

1.1.1h

Complete a ‘spoke’ mapping exercise of Rhondda Fach including buildings, 

services, networks, community groups and environmental and cultural 

assets.

April  

2018- 

ongoing 

Angharad Stephens 

with identified 

partners

Completed.

1.1.1i

Engage with the community through a Rhondda Fach ‘Our Community 

Matters’ event to allow residents to reflect on their community 

experiences, highlighting strengths and areas to develop. 

17th April 

2018
Simon James

Completed.

1.1.1j
Produce and present a cabinet report for approval to develop community 

Hubs in RCT, specifically in the Rhondda Fach area, Ferndale Infant school.
19th April 

2018
Paul Mee

Completed.

1.1.1k
Arrange and attend a Theory of Change workshop facilitated by Welsh 

Government for all Cwm Taf strategic group members.
22nd May 

2018
Angharad Stephen

Completed.

1.1.1l
Produce a draft Theory of Change process in readiness to be jointly 

developed with the community 
May-18

Cwm Taf  Strategic 

Group (objective 1)

Completed.

1.1.1

m

Explore the accessibility of current services for individuals with Learning 

Disabilities in Rhondda Fach.

June 2018- 

Ongoing

Angharad 

Stephens/Nicola 

Sweet with identified 

community links

This work is being undertaken with the Cwm Taf 

Learning Disabilities Community working Group. 

Workshops planned for February, involving 

parents and carers. 
Develop Community Zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing on 

a preventative approach to support 

and improve outcomes for our areas 

with the greatest challenge.

Actions Milestones

2

P
age 61



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.1n

Develop and undertake a Rhondda Fach Theory of Change workshop with 

the community and undertake a baseline audit to monitor the success of 

the approach in the coming year.

19th June 

2018

Community Zone Task 

and Finish group with 

ICE support

Completed.

1.1.1o

Fern Partnership, as anchor organisation, to submit a funding business 

plan to Pen Y Cymoedd for match funding to develop the Rhondda Fach 

hub and zone

Jun-18
Michelle - Fern 

Partnership

Completed - FP have received an offer letter 

from Pen Y Cymoedd confirming £206,000 

capital grant (Revenue aspect was denied). 

1.1.1p

Review the membership and governance of the Cwm Taf Strategic group; 

create a Rhondda Fach Community Zone implementation groups with 

Terms of Reference

Jun-18

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Completed - Membership reviewed, amended 

and TOR approved by the group

1.1.1q
Establish the membership of the Rhondda Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group with Terms of Reference
Jun-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation 

Group

Completed - Two meetings have taken place to 

date.  Membership of 20 colleagues in total, 

representatives from: police, NRW, 

Health/Health board, spokesperson for Learning 

disabilities, third sector organisation, various 

service areas (Education, resilient families, 

community safety, day centres, libraries, youth, 

adult services, corporate estates, regeneration) 

hoping to have Natalie Johnson from Save the 

Children to attend in the future.   TOR have been 

complete and approved by the group.

1.1.1r
Explore the membership of a Community Hub Management Board and 

required roles and representation
Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.1s
Explore the membership of a Neighbourhood Network Group for the area 

to get the community connected. 
Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.1t
Establish the Community Hub Management Board and required roles and 

representation
Oct-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - ToR complete and approved by CZ  

Implementation Group.  To confirm the 

Management Board will be chaired by Fern 

Partnership and will `consist of 6 members.           

i.   2 RCT Officers 

ii.  2 FP employees.  

iii. 2 Community members 

1.1.1u
Establish the Community Steering Group for the area to support the 

development of Neighbourhood networks
Feb-19

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

ToR complete and approved by CZ  

Implementation Group. Membership complete, 

first meeting to be arranged.

1.1.1v Launch the opening of the Community Hub and Zone with the community Mar-19 The Community

Develop Community Zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing on 

a preventative approach to support 

and improve outcomes for our areas 

with the greatest challenge.

Completed - Discussed in Community Zone 

Implementation Group- Complete 

3

P
age 62



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.2a

Engage with the community through a Rhondda Fach ‘Our Community 

Matters’ event to explore access to information and services that have 

been identified through the mapping exercise.

Sep-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Complete - Over 55 people attended the event, 

going forward these events will be coordinated 

and facilitated by the Rhondda Fach Community 

Cooridinator

1.1.2b

Promote and raise awareness of the services that could be accessed 

through the Rhondda Fach Community Zones/Hub, such as: Social 

prescribing; Intergenerational activities; Communities for Work plus 

programme; widening the eligibility criteria for support; Digital inclusion 

and information literacy e.g. Digital Fridays and work clubs; Childcare 

provision being offered from the Community Hub in response to identified 

need by the community;  and access to the Resilient Family Service 

Sept 2018 

- ongoing
Partners

Social prescribing- Angharad has met with Lucy 

Foster (Wellbeing Officer) to explore the 

potential partnership working.  Will continue to 

work in partnership with Community Co-

ordinator and Zone.  Report written by Amy 

Lewis mapping the services in RCT, to inform 

way forward.

1.1.2c
Raise awareness around the ACE agenda with the Rhondda Fach 

community.

Sept  

2018- 

Ongoing

Claire Hutcheon - 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Daniel Clayton (PHW- Senior Public Health 

Practitioner) sits on the CZ implementation 

group and has completed an ACE training audit.  

An ACEs Train the Trainer course took place on 

4th February 2019. All 6 schools (primary and 

secondary) in the CZ area were invited to attend 

Level 1 ACES training on 9th January.  All those 

that attend the traininghave been recorded as 

part of the ACES Audit.

1.1.2d

Promote and raise the profile of online services such as the young person 

‘Wicid’ website and DEWIS with a focus on information, advice and 

assistance to the Rhondda Fach community.

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of Local 

Community Zone 

Implementation group

Online services will be promoted in the Our 

Community Matters Events throughout the year. 

The WICID editor attended the last event on th 

25th October and was percieved very well by 

local community members.

1.1.2e

Build capacity for providing the Rhondda Fach community with timely and 

accessible information, advice and assistance e.g. through upskilling 

volunteers/helpers and hub staff

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.2f

Work with partners in Rhondda Fach to provide health information and 

activities that promote people’s wellbeing including supporting the GP 

book prescription scheme

Sept 2018 

- ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.2g
Ensure that all relevant staff complete ACE training to build an ACE 

informed workforce

Jan 2019- 

Ongoing

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

Training held in January and February 2019.

Improve access to information and 

services through a single point of 

contact approach at the Community 

Hub within each Community Zones, 

joining up/integrating ‘one public 

service’.

4

P
age 63



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.3a
Work with the Rhondda Fach community to identify different methods of 

communication to ensure engagement is inclusive and accessible

June 2018- 

ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Series of informal involvement events are 

ongoing, delivered by Community Co-ordinator; 

these events have been advertised via posters in 

local shops, social media and Our Cwm Taf 

website. Communication strategy approved by 

CZ Implementation Group(KS). 

Working in partnership with People First to 

create easy read documents.

1.1.3b
Work with the Rhondda Fach community to identify areas of concerns 

regarding anti-social behaviour  and discuss potential solutions
Mar-19

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

‘School Officers’ will be included to tackle any 

key concerns in the community Zone. We also 

recognised the issue tends to be the perception 

of crime rather than the reality of crime.  

Therefore, we will be exploring ways to capture 

the perception of crime e.g. surveys conducted 

by the Community Safety Team

1.1.3c Pilot approaches in Rhondda Fach to tackle ASB in identified areas
Sept 2018 

- ongoing 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

As 1.1.3b

1.1.3d

Explore with the Rhondda Fach community possible events that would 

bring the community together and help them to feel better connected e.g. 

Christmas party, Halloween, Bonfire Night.

Sept - 

ongoing

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

The community event 'Operation Bang' took 

place in November.  Previously 300 community 

members attended, however the event this year 

was promoted through the community 

Engagement events which saw an increase in 

partners involved  and over 950 community 

members attend.

1.1.3e
Seek community views on the local green spaces and activities to gain a 

better understanding of what exists, used and needed in Rhondda Fach
Oct-18

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

Emma Jones (NRW) attended the community 

Engagement Event and held a workshop on how 

£10,000 of funding could be used on community 

projects that develop and promote green open 

spaces.  A further event was held on 11th 

December to confirm the final projects and 

costs/resources required.  The community 

projects have identified areas for improvement 

and started to purchase equipment and 

plants/shrubs/trees.

1.1.3f
Complete a mapping exercise to identify the volunteering and ‘helping’ 

opportunities in Rhondda Fach
Nov-18

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

The Community Cooridnator has started to 

engage with stakholders, local groups and 

community members to identify Community 

Champions/connectors.

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

5

P
age 64



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.3g
Promote the benefits of volunteering/helping  and inspire people to 

engage with volunteering/helping opportunities in Rhondda Fach
Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3h
Identify with the community the skills and resources that they could 

provide as a volunteer/helper
Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3i Develop a volunteering training schedule for Rhondda Fach Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.3j
Link volunteering/helping opportunities to time banking and other reward 

schemes in Rhondda Fach
Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

1.1.4a
Complete an evaluation exercise with the Rhondda Fach community to 

gain base line data
Jun-18

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - Baseline data was collected in the 

community matters event in June. (baseline 

statements)

1.1.4b
Complete a Theory Of Change exercise with Rhondda Fach partners and 

community 

June 2018- 

ongoing

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

Completed - Explored the Theory of Change 

framework with the community through asset 

focused workshops. Now complete but will be 

under ongoing review.

1.1.4c
Confirm the performance indicators that will be reported on once the hub 

is established  

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1)

1.1.4d
Work with young people in Rhondda Fach to capture the impact of 

Community Zones through film making.  

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.4e
Work with partners to explore and establish an evaluation framework to 

measure the impact of Community Zones 

Sept 2018- 

ongoing 

Chair of Cwm Taf  

Strategic Group 

(objective 1) 

1.1.4f
Complete the same evaluation exercise delivered in June, with the 

Rhondda Fach community in order to measure distance travelled
Mar-19

Chair of the Rhondda 

Fach Community Zone 

Implementation group

1.1.4g
Case studies to be completed by the Rhondda Fach community to evidence 

the development and impact of neighbourhood networks 
Mar-19

Chair of Rhondda Fach 

Neighbourhood 

Network group

GURNOS, MT

1.1.1a
Create a Community Zone in the Gurnos – building identified, renovations 

underway
Apr-18 MTCBC, MVH,

Completed - Building is open for service 

delivery, to the community, renovations are 

being made in some areas.

1.1.1b Review approach to regional governance- governance agreed  May-18
Strategic 

Implementation group

Completed

1.1.1c Co locate services into community hub- service re-located Jun-18 MTCBC/MVH Some services are co-located.

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

Develop community zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing a 

preventative approach to support to 

improve outcomes for our areas with 

the greatest challenges.

Data Cymru have delivered an initial workshop, 

developed an outline framework and fed back 

first draft to the Strategic Group in January. 

Members of Strategic group with support from 

CZ team and support team, will provide data in 

relation to their areas, identified as indicators in 

the framework.

Ongoing.

6

P
age 65



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.1d
Agree Local Governance arrangements for the Community Hub ‘facility’ -  

Strategic Building Group Operational
Jun-18 MVH

Completed

1.1.1e
Develop Governance Structure  for the ‘wider community zone’ approach  

across partners - Agreed by Partners and community
Aug-18 MTCBC

Completed - MTCBC scrutiny ratified in 

September.  Structure agreed and completed.

1.1.1f
Develop a Community Zone/ Gurnos Community Network ‘brand’ – with a 

marketing plan in place
Apr-19 MTCBC

The brand is being developed with the 

community, the local youth group and the 

implementation group.  This will be launched 1.1.1g
To identify the needs of vulnerable families residing in the Gurnos 

community zone -identify needs
Mar-19 Cordis bright research work commissioned, awaiting report

1.1.1h
Develop “an ACE-informed” workforce across the community Zone - 

Schedule of training  to be agreed

01/11/20

18 - 

ongoing

Public Health

workforce training for some areas of service is 

underway and train the trainer lead nominated.  

ACEs Train the Trainer took place on the 4th 

February.

1.1.2a
In partnership with key agencies establish the model for Information 

Advice and Assistance Service within the Community Zone.

June 2019 

- Ongoing
MTCBC/MVH

outline model developed, anchor organisation 

and some partners co-located contributing into 

the model - ongoing but work underway.  

1.1.2b
Ensure IT access and infrastructure is in place for the community to access 

information  within the hub Electronic Info points  in place
Jan-19 MTCBC / 3Gs

Ongoing  - work underway. Funding secured and 

work underway. 

1.1.2c
Agree contract with Voluntary partner  to provide  Information and advice 

from facility ‘SPOC’ approach - 3 sessions open to community
Jan-19 MTCBC/CS

As above (1.1.2a)

1.1.2d
Explore with FF and CS the provision of IAA in the community hub ‘SPOC’ 

approach – 3 additional spaces open
Jan-19 MTCBC

ongoing.

1.1.2e
Agree how IAA model is extended to co-located services  within the hub - 4 

additional sessions  available
Jan-19

Lead; 3Gs 

Development Trust

As above (1.1.2a)

1.1.2f

Complete a mapping exercise of services and provision, and data, including 

building, services, networks, community groups, environmental and 

cultural -  A map of provision and services in the area

Jul-18 MVH /MTCBC

Completed.

1.1.2g 
Establish and develop a range of specialist clinics for drop ins based upon 

community needs - Drop in take up
Jul-18

Completed - Delivery of clinics is in place  and 

has been for some time  - this will be expanded 

with the renovations and IAA model.  This will 

potentially be further expanded by a 21st 

Century Learning Hub funding application.  We 

have been successful at the EOI stage and have 

been invited to develop a business case.

Improve access to information and 

services through a single point of 

contact approach at the Community 

Hub within each Community Zones, 

joining up/integrating ‘one public 

service’.

Develop community zones as an area 

or place based approach focussing a 

preventative approach to support to 

improve outcomes for our areas with 

the greatest challenges.

7

P
age 66



SPBFEB19_Item 5.i_Thriving Commnities_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/01/19)

1.1.3a
Establish a Neighbourhood Network model to ensure a coproduction 

approach is embedded across the Community Zone
Feb-19

MTCBC, 3Gs 

Development Trust, 

VAMT

Neighbourhood Network is developing and the 

first meeting is to take place on 11th February 

with a focus on the NRW environmental 

improvements project..  

1.1.3b
Develop a Community Zone promotional campaign- to raise awareness  of 

community zone, marketing plan  and use of digital media
Apr-19

MTCBC, 3Gs 

Development Trust, 

VAMT

Will tie in with 1.1.3a.  

1.1.3c
Establish and create a Neighbourhood Network  - TOR’s agreed and in 

place  
Apr-19 MTCBC, VAMT As 1.1.3a.  

1.1.3d
Develop a robust  annual community engagement and involvement  action 

plan - 1 co- produced solution  to local needs identified
Aug-18 MTCBC, VAMT

Completed.

1.1.4a Complete a base lining exercise with the community Jun-18

Implementation 

group/Community 

Steering group

Completed

1.1.4b Complete a Theory Of Change exercise with partners and community
June 2018- 

ongoing

Implementation 

group/Community 

Steering group

To be scheduled for future implementation 

group meeting. Diane, can you check this?

1.1.4c Finalise the performance indicators for Community Zones
Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Implementation 

Group

Will be informed by the evaluation framework 

being developed. 

1.1.4d
Work with the community to capture the impact of Community Zones 

through case studies

Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Gurnos Community 

Zone Implementation 

Group

As 1.1.4c

1.1.4e
Work with partners to explore and establish an evaluation framework to 

measure the impact of Community Zones

Sept 2018- 

ongoing

Cwm Taf Strategic 

Group (objective 

1)/Implementation 

Group

As 1.1.4c

Communities to be positively 

engaged and empowered so they 

have a real say in the services they 

receive and how they are organised 

and delivered in their community 

together through a co-production 

approach

Develop a joint evaluation framework 

across Cwm Taf to compare and 

contrast the models and their 

effectiveness to inform future 

developments.

8

P
age 67



 

Highlight / Exception Report_(Healthy People) _SPBFeb19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPBFEB19_5ii 

Well-being 
Objective  /Group 
Name 

Healthy People – First 1000 Days 
 

Lead Officer Angela Jones, Cwm Taf Public Health 

Key 
Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 
 

Date Red Amber Green White 

19/02/2019 0 0 0 18 

8/01/2019 0 0 0 18 

 
See Appendix 1 (Delivery Plan) and 2 (Data 
Measures) for details of progress against delivery 
plans and measures. 

 Completed the mapping of the pathways from 

conception to age 7 including health, education, 

play and parenting provisions.  Finalising 

completed version which will be shared within 

Early Years Co-Construction project 

 Evidence review of risk factors, protective factors 

and effective interventions from pre-conception to 

age 7 completed. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

 Removal of added sugar drinks – partners have 

been invited to attend a task and finish group to 

undertake the work required by July 2019. 

 One Small Change Campaign – report to 

SPB/PSB January 2019.  As a result of 

consultation feedback, a voluntary roll out to 

partner organisations, who wish to participate, will 

be implemented in January.  The toolkit will be 

published on Our Cwm Taf for partners’ use. 

What is working 
well and how is 
this being done 
differently (5 
WOWs)? 

 WG funded post to drive the development and 

setting up of vulnerability profile agreed in 

principle. 

 An Acting Consultant in Public Health has now 

commenced work on the delivery of Objective 

2.1.b to keep people healthier for longer is a 

challenge given the complexity of this objective 

and the capacity to lead and deliver.  This could be 

discharged jointly through the RPB to lead, given 

their Cwm Taf Ageing Well Plan and being a 

priority group within the Area Plan. 

9
Page 68

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_(Healthy People) _SPBFeb19 

 The review of the effectiveness of sexual health 

prevention services to support vulnerable women 

has been commissioned. Interviews with service 

users will take place during March with the final 

project write up provided by the end of May.  

Further analysis of data will be undertaken by the 

Public Health Team to complement this work.   

 Removal of Added Sugar Drinks – agreement by 

partners to implement by July 2019 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the  
challenges / 
risks? 
 
 

 Initial confirmation of funding for Vulnerability 
Profiling post from Welsh Government has not yet 
been confirmed in writing, as awaiting Ministerial 
sign off of the programme of work.  This work 
stream is at risk as the skilled individual identified 
to undertake this work is likely to be redirected into 
other work as part of the Organisational Change 
Process in the Health Board for the Bridgend 
Boundary change.  

 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

 Appoint a Lead to develop and deliver vulnerability 
profiling and data sharing agreements. 

 Share evidence base for interventions for maternal 
and early years 

 Deliver the review of the effectiveness of sexual 
health prevention services to support vulnerable 
women.   

What needs to be 
escalated to 
PSB? 

The risk around the Vulnerability Profiling funding 
confirmation and commencement.   

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms and 
Engagement. 

 Further discussion of the proposal to deliver 

Objective 2.1b through the RPB, with advice and 

challenge role from PSB lead. 

 

10
Page 69

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFEB19_Item 5ii_HealthyPeople_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 31/12/18)

1

Sharing the system mapping with the Cwm Taf and Bridgend PSB, Regional 

Partnership Board, professionals, community hubs, service users to: 

a.  promote better understanding of the complexity of pathways and 

determine the governance of planning and service delivery            b.      

initiate innovative ways to simplify the system                                           c.       

promote easier access to service                                                                         

d.      Ensure effective governance

June - 

Nov 2018

Angela Jones/Zoe 

Lancelot. ICE sub 

group 

Finalise the system mapping completed at event 

and share through the Early Years Co-

Construction Project.

2 Explore the benefits of a Single Point of Contact for access to services Mar-19
Public Health 

Team/PHW?

To consider duplication with Thriving 

Communities 1.1.1c RCT and 1.1.2c Gurnos.  To 

look at SPOC in terms of IAA and referrals.

3

Explore the benefits of a ‘trusted person’ to help vulnerable people 

navigate the system, including routine enquiry, motivational interviewing, 

goal setting

Jun-19

Currently working on data for vulnerability 

profiling, in relation to evidence on importance 

of early years, current and potential 

interventions, return on investment on 

interventions. Evidence base work completed. 

4

Review acceptability and effectiveness of parenting programmes with 

service users (to include the importance of attachment) with a view to 

optimising programmes.

Jun-19
Local Authorities 

(completed by MT)

Review to be completed by March 19.  Will be 

dependant on Vulnerability Profiling outcomes.

5 Training: ACE aware professionals and communities Jan-19 PHW
Cwm Taf specific event for staff and partners of 

Community Zones  held on the 04/02/19.  A 

further school training event held on  09/01/19.

1 Define information and data sources of interest Nov-18
Angela Jones with PSB 

Leads for services

Funding secured from WG to appoint a lead for 

Vulnerability Profile and data sharing 

agreementsfor last two weeks of March but 

awaiting confirmation for the 2019/20 financial 

year.  Role to commence March 2019 subject to 

agreement of funding.

2 Agree Information sharing protocol
Mar 19-

20

Principle agreed, new role to work through the 

detail of information needed and data sharing 

protocol.

3 Risk profiling based upon all data sources Jun-19
Not due.

4 Identifying priority risk groups for interventions Sep-19
Not due.

5
Explore funding flexibilities to support and target early interventions 

(midwifery and Health Visitor led)

Mar 19-

Mar 20 Not due.

1
Using data and risk profile of parents of CLA 0-1 years, identify priority 

groups to target contraceptive outreach 
Mar-19

Sexual Health 

Advisory Board with 

LA Children’s Services

Agreement and funding in place to scope the 

work and commission investigation into high risk 

groups; meeting with vulnerable service users to 

gain their views on most appropriate forms of 

contraception, through co-produced methods.

Vulnerability profiling - Agree a data 

sharing protocol and implement to A) 

identify risk factors for vulnerablility, 

B) target actions for prevention / 

early intervention and C) identify 

appropriate outcome measures

Actions Milestones

System-wide approach

Preventing unplanned pregnancies - 

to target more effectively vulnerable 

women to prevent unplanned 

pregnancies through promotion and 

easy access to long acting reversible 

contraception (LARC) 

11

P
age 70



SPBFEB19_Item 5ii_HealthyPeople_Appendix 1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 31/12/18)

2

Identify and implement appropriate contraceptive outreach, working with 

“trusted key workers” in targeted services, having regard to current good 

practice by engaging partners working with priority groups.

Mar 19-

20

All PSB Partners. ICE 

subgroup

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

1 Promote attachment of infant:parents Mar-20 Health Visitors 
To be included in 2019-2020 plan, informed by 

Wellcom Assessment.

2
Optimise support/referral to interventions to support healthy growth, play 

and development through the Healthy Child Wales Programme
Mar-20 Health Visitors

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

3
Early identification of speech and language: timing of health visitor 

assessment Jun-19
Speech and Language 

Therapists

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

4 Engagement and knowledge of parents with ‘school readiness’ Mar-20

Health Visitors, 

schools, early years 

settings and ICE Sub 

Group

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

5 Review transition in to schools Mar-20

Health Visitors, 

schools, early years 

settings and ICE Sub 

Group

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

1

Undertake review to include content, delivery, timing of delivery and 

uptake by vulnerable groups and having regard to the recommendations in 

The Future of the Sex and Relationships Education Curriculum in Wales

Jun-19

Sexual Health 

Advisory Board, 

School Nurses and 

schools

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

2 Recommendations to be implemented Sep-19

Sexual Health 

Advisory Board, 

School Nurses and 

schools

To be included in 2019-2020 plan.

Improving Education: Reviewing sex 

and relationships education (SRE) and 

personal social education (PSE) in 

secondary school. To focus on the 

importance healthy relationships, 

health and well-being prior to 

conception for males and females.

Preventing unplanned pregnancies - 

to target more effectively vulnerable 

women to prevent unplanned 

pregnancies through promotion and 

easy access to long acting reversible 

contraception (LARC) 

Increasing School Readiness 

12

P
age 71



SPBFeb19_5ii_Healthy People_App2 SPBJan19_Item13.1_HealthyPeople_Appendix2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Healthy PeopleHP1

Local and 

National

Percentage of vulnerable clients with active 

LARC (data development need) Increase Various

Healthy PeopleHP2 Local Risk factors in pregnancy Decrease Midwives (MITS)

Healthy PeopleHP3

Local and 

National Low birth weight rates 6.50% 7.40% 7.20% 5.60% Decrease Midwives (MITS)

Healthy PeopleHP4

Local and 

National Initiation of breast feeding Increase Midwives (MITS)

Healthy PeopleHP5

Local and 

National Breastfeeding at 6 months Increase Health visitors

Healthy PeopleHP6

Local and 

National Children Looked After at , year 1 and year 2 Decrease Children's services

Healthy PeopleHP7

Local and 

National

Children meeting their development goals e.g. 

weight, language development, physical 

development Increase Health visitors

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

13

P
age 72



 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPFeb19_5iii 

Well-being 
Objective  /Group 
Name 

Strong Economy 

Lead Officer Alyn Owen, MTCBC 

Key 
Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 
 

Date Red Amber Green White 

19/02/2019 0 1 9 8 

08/01/2019 0 1 8 9 

06/11/2018 0 0 5 13 

18/09/2018 0 0 12 6 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for details of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Strong alignment and support of the existing 
Workforce  
Development workstream: 

 The joint group met on 28th January. Discussion 
focused on the Employability Pledge, Training 
Compendium and the Diagnostic Review of 
Tourism in Cwm Taf. 

Agree Cwm Taf employability pledge: 

 Lowenna Mummery met with partners throughout 
January to go through the elements of the Pledge, 
what was achievable and aspirational, areas 
where work was already underway and any 
potential barriers.  

 Two areas are still in need of further discussion – 
the Welsh language and Living Wage, and the 
group wants clarity around some of the specific 
elements and what they could entail. This will help 
to strengthen the understanding the value in 
having a shared pledge. 

Joint training compendium for Cwm Taf public 
sector 

 Further clarity is still needed around the intention 
of a joint training compendium, how it will be used 
and whether a working group is needed to take the 
work forward / capacity for keeping it as a live 
document. 

 The group discussed whether a more pragmatic 
approach would be to formalise an agreement to 
share training opportunities, particularly statutory 
training such as safeguarding, and explore how to 
collectively offer and undertake shared training on 

14
Page 73

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

common areas as a pilot, e.g. management 
training. 

Full diagnostic assessment of the visitor economy 
businesses in Cwm Taf: 

 A strategic Cwm Taf level report of the findings 
has been drafted and will be available to SPB for 
the April meeting. Early findings from the review 
and resulting reports show that volunteering within 
the sector is more common than first thought, and 
there are some clear identified training needs. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

Schools’ engagement: No progress since last 
update.  
The plan is to work with two schools, attached to the 
developing Community Zone areas, to explore how 
much schools plan for work readiness in particular 
sectors when setting their curriculum, how pupils feel 
about local career opportunities and apprenticeships 
and try to develop work experience opportunities 
across a range of public sector areas. 
School engagement is planned for the new year, 
potentially starting with pupils in years 8 and 9 (those 
aged 12, 13 and 14). 

What is working 
well and how is 
this being done 
differently (5 
WOWs)? 

 The group collectively challenging each other on 
the elements of the Pledge and identifying areas of 
collaboration, offering shared and improved 
opportunities for the people of Cwm Taf. 

 The Valley’s Regional Park recently announced six 
of its gateway sites, including Cyfarthfa Park in 
Merthyr, Ynysangharad Park and  Dare Valley 
Park in RCT. The group will continue to collaborate 
with the WG project and explore the potential to 
maximise opportunities arising from this work. 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the 
challenges / 
risks? 
 
 

 Capacity and resourcing worked linked to the 

Employability Pledge was frequently brought up in 

the group – particularly in terms of volunteering 

(both in terms of workforce going out, and 

members of the community coming in). 

 Discussions around shared pool of applicants / 

volunteers / apprenticeships could have GDPR 

implications. A joint agreement needs to be put in 

place amongst PSB partners to inform a consent 

option on forms.  

 Steer is requested on what the SPB sees as the 

value and purpose of a joint Training Compendium 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

 SPB signoff of the draft Pledge. Have the Pledge 
reviewed and adopted across partner 

15
Page 74

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

organisations 

 Clarify the role and intention of the Training 
Compendium. 

 Progress engagement with schools around work-
readiness 

 Explore opportunities of working with Interlink re: 
volunteering within public sector. 

 Workshop with Data Cymru and developing the 
outcome statements with the Strong Economy 
Group to inform the second year Delivery Plan. 

What needs to be 
escalated to 
PSB? 
 

Nothing at this stage 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms and 
Engagement. 

 ICE to promote the training compendium and 
employability pledge, once agreed and signed off 

 

 Help with engagement – specifically around 
schools and workforce. 

 

16
Page 75

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.1.1 Cwm Taf SPB Workforce Plan & Recruitment: This will present a baseline 

and overview analysis of one public sector at Cwm Taf, to identify the 

current workforce composition.  It will identify the occupational groups 

that are in large demand and limited supply (i.e. engineers, social workers, 

fire fighters, etc.), and will help to predict future vacancy levels across the 

SPB. 01-Jun-19

Joanne Davies / Beth 

Winder (CTLHB)

Linked to the Commitment/employability pledge 

(identified as a quick win). Work has been 

undertaken to frame the pledge aroundthe 

immediate steps as identified in the Well-being 

Plan. The Pledge has been discussed with 

individual organisations and as a collective, and 

some discussion have been had around making 

best use of a pool of potential employees and 

avoid competing tensions, e.g. care staff needed 

for social services and the health board

3.1.2
Building an External Workforce : College & School Engagement: The Public 

Sector is the largest employer within Cwm Taf.  We will promote it as a 

sector of choice schools and colleges, through focus groups, school 

engagement, work placement opportunities and developing talent pipeline 

opportunities.  This will ensure that the SPB has a skilled external labour 

market in place. 01-Jun-19 Sue Walker (MTCBC)

Sue Walker now leads this strand and this has 

been identified as a priority area. The school 

engagement undertaken by this workstream  will 

look to pilot approaches linked to the 

curriculum, skills needs and pupil 

readiness/attitude towards the world of work 

and apprenticeships. Work is also linked to the 

volunteering aspects within the cross cutting 

theme of tackling loneliness and isolation. 

3.1.3
Building an External Workforce : Employability: The Cwm Taf Commitment 

Pledge will help to identify the numbers of job opportunities that will 

become available.  The SPB will work with the National Training Federation 

Wales to maximise its investment on the apprenticeship levy to build 

employability skills and talent pipelines through shared apprenticeship 

programmes, internship, graduate, job trial opportunities. 01-Jun-19

Deb Ryan-Newton. 

Maria Price (MTCBC)

 Apprenticeships continue a key focus, with the 

Strong Economy group looking at how to 

develop a single point of entry for 

apprenticeships in the public sector.  Work 

around the pledge and what it means and how it 

can be adopted has been the focus of the work, 

including having taster days within local 

businesses/PSB partners and organisations being 

responsible for engaging with schools (linked to 

school and college engagement). 

3.1.4
Building an Internal Workforce : Training: The SPB training compendium 

will bring financial savings whilst increasing opportunities for training 

simultaneously.  It will also support the consistency of Leadership and 

Management courses, and in ensuring that there are consistent 

arrangements to retain and develop Welsh Language Capacity. 01-Jun-19 Deb Hughes (RCT)

Linked to the development of a training 

compendium of local employment programmes 

and providers (identified as a quick win). RCT 

launched their training compendium in autumn 

2018 but further work is needed regarding a 

joint product, with steer from SPB on what this 

means/how it can be built on by PSB partners.

Milestones

Stimulate and boost the aspirations 

and skills of our people to meet 

public and private sector career 

opportunities: Develop a repeatable 

Workforce Development model to 

address Workforce issues.

Actions

17

P
age 76



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.1.5

Building a Future Workforce : Retention: The SPB is keen to build its 

relationship with Academi Wales, particularly with the graduate 

programme.   This will assist in the development of a holistic approach to 

performance management and succession planning, encouraging 

colleagues to embrace change as an opportunity for continuous 

development. 01-Jun-19

Fran Donnelly 

(MTCBC)

We have built relationships with Academi Wales 

to engage with the graduate programme and 

Lowenna Mummery's post. This will help us 

develop her to become a potential 

leader/manager of the future.  The experience 

she will gain across a number of public sector 

organisations is paramount in us helping to work 

holistically and increase partnership working. 

Improving the range and access to training 

opportunities, linked to the shared Training 

Compendium, should also increase 

opportunities for continuous development.

3.2.1
Amalgamate recent STEAM figures for Merthyr Tydfil and RCT in order to 

fully understand the economic impact of tourism on the Cwm Taf economy.
Aug-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.2 Mapping tourist ‘hot spots’ across Cwm Taf Aug-18
Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.3
Full Diagnostic Review of hospitality provision (including business need) in 

Cwm Taf
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.4
Full Diagnostic Review of accommodation provision (including business 

need) in Cwm Taf
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.5
Undertake ‘gap analysis’ based on findings of the above, including 

identifying new partners or information sources 
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)

Completed for the two separate authorities. 

Work now underway to compile a Cwm Taf 

strategic overview based on findings and next 

steps. Report will be available to SPB in February

3.4.1
Undertake a mapping exercise of local Employment Programmes and 

providers
Sep-18 Deb Ryan-Newton

A mapping exercise of local Employment 

Programmes and providers is underway. 

Information has been gathered on all Work 

Based Learning Providers.  19 providers are 

contracted directly with Welsh Government to 

deliver Apprenticeships and Traineeships across 

Wales. Out of the 19 providers contracted by 

Welsh Government, 14 providers have an 

allocation of grant to deliver in the Cwm Taf 

Region.

3.4.2 Develop a training compendium to be shared with staff Dec-18 Deb Hughes (RCT)
Linked to action 3.1.4. Work ongoing to develop 

a Cwm Taf-wide compendium

3.4.3
Work with local businesses, providers and commissioning services to 

address any identified gaps in training requirements
Jan-19 Paul Gray

N/A - reliant on compendium completion. Some 

needs already identified through the Diagnostic 

Review of the Tourism Sector.

Stimulate and boost the aspirations 

and skills of our people to meet 

public and private sector career 

opportunities: Develop a repeatable 

Workforce Development model to 

address Workforce issues.

Growth and promotion of tourism 

using the assets of our beautiful 

natural environment, heritage and 

culture for the health, prosperity and 

benefit of the whole community and 

alongside the development of the 

Valleys Landscape Park: Undertake a 

full diagnostic assessment of the 

Visitor Economy Businesses in Cwm 

Taf, including statistics, development 

needs and key data.

Align the employment and training 

needs of the sector to the Cwm Taf 

Employment Programmes in the 

respective local authority areas.

18

P
age 77



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.4.4
Look for opportunities for ‘informal’ upskilling through on- the-job training 

or corporate volunteering
Jan-19 Deb Ryan-Newton

This will be explored within the tourism sector. 

The diagnostic review identified significant 

numbers volunteering in the accommodation 

and tourism sector and this is something that 

could be further explored, undertaking a training 

needs analysis linked to the work of the 

employment liaison officers

3.4.5
Liaise with schools and HE in Cwm Taf around opportunities for links 

between tourism courses and training opportunities
Feb-19 Sue Walker (MTCBC)

We have identified that, within Merthyr, WBQ 

learning providers have an offer available for 

hospitality, leisure, sport and travel. These need 

to be fully explored to maximise take up in the 

future. This is linked to 3.1.2. 

3.4.6
Explore links between ‘suitable’ volunteering for the Welsh Baccalaureate 

Qualification and leisure/tourism
Feb-19

Sue Walker (MTCBC), 

Deb Ryan-Newton

Through alignment with the ‘Tackling Loneliness 

and Isolation’ objective, we are supporting work 

around worthwhile volunteering linked to the 

Welsh Baccalaureate Qualification (WBQ) and 

Duke of Edinburgh award. 

Volunteering fayres have taken place.                 

Surveys are also being produced for pupils, 

educational establishments and businesses 

around careers in the leisure sector which will 

be rolled out from January. Further work will 

also be explored with the schools in the two 

community zone areas - Pen Y Dre for the 

Gurnos, and Ferndale Community School for 

Upper Rhondda Fach.

3.4.7 Explore potential apprenticeships in the leisure and tourism sector Feb-19
Deb Ryan-Newton; 

Paul Gray

Preparation work is being developed linked to 

the work above

3.4.8

Create links with (corporate) marketing and communication teams to 

create a young person’s guide to Cwm Taf promoted and shared through 

social media

Mar-19 Sue Walker

Not due.

Align the employment and training 

needs of the sector to the Cwm Taf 

Employment Programmes in the 

respective local authority areas.

Develop leisure/tourism as an 

employment and training opportunity

19

P
age 78



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Strong 

Economy
SE1 Local Development of one Cwm Taf SPB workforce plan N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE2 Local

Calculation of Training spend per head - pre and 

post training compendium
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE3 Local

Predicted employee labour turnover across the 

partnership organisations aligned to the age profile
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE4 Local

X40 accomodation providers assessed as part of 

Cwm Taf Diagnostic Review process
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE5 Local

x12 key attractions assessed as part of the Cwm Taf 

Diagnostic Review Process
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Total economic impact of tourism £235,500,000 N/A £71,530,000 £163,970,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Total visitor days 4,070,000 N/A 1,270,000 2,800,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Staying visitor days 1,631,000 N/A 401,000 1,230,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local

STEAM: Total number of FTE jobs supported by 

Tourism
2,933 N/A 917 2,016 Annually MTCBC

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

20

P
age 79



 

Agenda Item8iv_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Update from Boards 
 

Agenda No SPBFEB19_8iv 

Name of Board 
 

Information, Communication and Involvement (ICI) Group 

Chair  Simon James 

Current focus for 
the Board 

 

 In line with the Well-being of Future Generations Act, and 
revised structure the name for the group will be changed to 
Information, Communication and Involvement or ICI. 

 The Communication Lead and support team have been 
working on the ICI Strategy and Terms of Reference; these 
are presented to SPB at Appendix 1 and 2 as part of this 
update. Following approval at January SPB, the newsletter 
was published as scheduled and shared with partners for 
promotion. The PSB website saw a significant upturn in 
traffic following the newsletter being shared. 

 The Information and Intelligence work stream have focussed 
on the website and meeting the requirements of the Welsh 
Government funding bid that they are part-responsible for. 
Work on developing a dashboard linked to the PSB 
performance monitoring framework will progress once 
measures are agreed / evaluation framework is developed in 
collaboration with Data Cymru. 

 Cwm Taf-wide spring conference has been set for 13 March. 
Involvement of young people continues with PSB support 
team members supporting. 

 At the ICI meeting on the 12th December 2018 it was agreed 
that the structure of the group would be amended and this is 
now being implemented. 

 The ICI requirements moving forward will be determined at 
the same time as setting the delivery plans for 2019/20 
onwards.  

 Outside of this, works has been done to establish the role of 
ICI in terms of tasks and influence (tabled at meeting). To 
use ICI as a vehicle for a real cognitive shift, the group 
proposes that: 

o PSB develops a shared Cwm Taf Citizens Panel with 
resources and GDPR arrangements in place to 
support. 

o PSB commits to the need of a radical shift in terms of 
involvement and supports ICI with scoping and 
pathfinder projects, e.g. the Building Communities 
Trust worked linked to ‘tackling loneliness and 
isolation’. 

o SPB identifies and commits to supporting ICI with 
production, translation, design and promotion of PSB 

21
Page 80

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/
http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/SharedFiles/Download.aspx?pageid=286&mid=613&fileid=403


 

Agenda Item8iv_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

outputs, e.g. the Annual Report and tasks linked to 
Objective delivery. 

Challenges for 
consideration by 
the SPB 

 Consider the draft ICI strategy at Appendix 1.  This will form 
the foundations for each of the ICI work streams.  

 Approve the ICI Terms of Reference – Appendix 2 

 Commit to addressing resource requirements re: translation, 
design, publication and promotion. ICI require a lead contact 
/ partner for each element. 

 Support the establishment of a shared Cwm Taf Citizens 
Panel. The functionality exists within the Our Cwm Taf 
website, and potentially the ‘People’s Platform’ from the 
OFGC but potential to part-fund (with RPB) a development / 
engagement officer – based on North Wales regional model. 

 Commit to trialling a radical approach to involvement through 
pathfinder projects. 

Performance No performance criteria to report. 
Funding bid update submitted to WG as scheduled. 
 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

 Embed the ICI strategy into the work plans of each of the ICI 
work streams. 

 Support with the development of the Annual Report.  

 Consider the next steps for evaluation, involvement and 
communications based on outline criteria for 2019/20 funding 
bid and the Live Lab ACEs work. 

 Explore ways forward in terms of developing a Citizens Panel 
and Pathfinder Projects, pending SPB support. 

 Workforce Development / Awareness. 
 

Challenges to be 
escalated to PSB? 
 

Committing to and supporting and embracing need to be radical 
and drive a cognitive shift in terms of meaningful involvement.  

 

22
Page 81

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    1 

 

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION AND INVOLVEMENT STRATEGY 

2018-2020 

 
AUTHOR 

 
Felicity Waters, Head of Communications and Media, Cwm Taf University Health Board 

WHAT IS THE PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD? 

 
The Cwm Taf Public Services Board (CTPSB) is a revolution in the way our local public services such as local authority services, health, 
education, police, probation, fire and rescue, and the voluntary sector are planned and delivered.   

The CTPSB is a joint Public Services Board covering Merthyr Tydfil and Rhondda Cynon Taf. The PSB has a duty under the Well-being of 

Future Generations (Wales) Act to coordinate the planning, commissioning and delivery of public services across organisational boundaries.  

The PSB’s purpose is to ensure everyone works together to improve the well-being of our communities, through effective partnership working. 
The CTPSB’s Well-Being Plan has four well-being objectives, which were agreed based upon evidence from the Cwm Taf Well-Being 
Assessment, March 2017 achieve this are: 
 

 Thriving Communities; 

 A Strong Economy;  

 Healthy People; and 

 Tackling loneliness and social isolation (cross-cutting objective). 
 

23

P
age 82

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    2 

 

The work of the PSB must consider the well-being of the people of Cwm Taf now and those who will live and work here in the future. This will be 
achieved by ensuring that all the work of the PSB is carried out in line with the sustainable development principle of the Well-being of Future 
Generations (Wales) Act, which sets out five specific ways in which the PSB must go about meeting its duty. By working in these ways, public 
bodies can seek to meet the needs of the present without compromising the ability of future generations to meet their own needs. 
 
 

 
 
The sustainable development principle is applicable to all work carried out by the PSB, including information, involvement and communication. 
As such, all activity conducted as part of any PSB work should employ these five ways of working. 
 
The well-being objectives identified by the PSB as the focus of its work, together with the steps it will take to meet them will form the Cwm Taf 
Well-being Plan. All PSB work streams are conducted in support of achieving the PSB’s well-being objectives and it is essential that any and all 
information, involvement and communications conducted in support of PSB work streams is designed and delivered to progress the work stream. 
 
In addition to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act and accompanying guidance, the information, involvement and communications 
activities developed as part of all PSB work will be underpinned by relevant standards and sources of best practice (Appendix B).  

24

P
age 83



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    3 

 

 

INFORMATION, COMMUNICATION AND INVOLVEMENT 

 
Information, communication and involvement mean the involvement of the people we work and live with in our communities and are key 
elements in the design and delivery of our services to improve the well-being of the people of Cwm Taf. 
 
Using and sharing data and information, and communicating  with the communities of Cwm Taf will be vital if the work of the PSB is to be 
understood and is to achieve its aim of changing the way we serve the public.  

The PSB is made up of the senior managers and leaders of the public and voluntary sector organisations right across Merthyr Tydfil and 
Rhondda Cynon Taf. It aims to shift the focus from simply reacting to the problems faced by our communities to using evidence to help prevent 
them, and addressing more issues together rather in isolation.   

This will involve working together with citizens, and within our own organisations, in a different way. 

As a relatively new body, the profile of the PSB is still very low in Cwm Taf. The priority will be to ensure that not only do our communities know 
what the Public Services Board is and what it does, but that staff in our own organisations are also familiar with its aims, and overall intent to 
work collectively.  

Raising the profile of the Public Services Board will be important for the delivery of the Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan, May 2018, so the public 
understands what it means for them and who is leading it. This will involve joint working of communications leads of all member organisations 
with a commitment to share information and news on the new Cwm Taf PSB website and cross promote the portal to all our stakeholders. 

While a general awareness raising campaign is needed about the PSB itself, more targeted communications and involvement will also be 
required to reflect the Objectives of the Well-Being Plan that are focussed on specific communities.    

This Information, Communication and Involvment Strategy will outline how the PSB and the individual organisations that are part of it can:  

 raise the profile of the PSB to increase awareness of its work; 

 communicate its key objectives simply;  

 involve the public in helping to identify solutions to the wider issues facing their community 

 making effective use and sharing the information we collect to improve public services 

 

25

P
age 84



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    4 

 

Involvement should follow the practice of co-production, where appropriate. This means that individuals and communities are offered 
opportunities at all stages of design, development and delivery to contribute and help shape projects and services.  
 
Channels for information sharing, involvement and communication  

 The ‘Our Cwm Taf’ website  

 Existing public services workforce   

 Events in local communities, businesses, schools, colleges etc 

 Websites and intranets of each member organisation 

 Social media channels within each member organisation 

 TV screens to broadcast key information within each member organisation eg. 22 patient information screens Cwm Taf University Health 
Board sites 

 Local media  

 Networks of the Local Assembly Members and MPs 
 

INCLUDING EVERYONE 

 
Involving, communicating and information sharing must be inclusive, taking account of as wide a range of stakeholders as possible, 
allowing all to have an opportunity to be meaningfully involved. 
 
The completion of a formal Equality Impact Assessment is not required under the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act. Regardless, all 
PSB involvement and communications must adhere to best practice principles (Appendix B), in order to ensure that all members of all 
communities, as far as possible, have the opportunity to be a part of the conversation. This includes those with specific protected 
characteristics. The targeting of involvement and communications at particular audiences and stakeholders may mean the development of 
specific products and/or activities. 
 

INFORMATION COMMUNICATION AND INVOLVEMENT (ICI) GROUP  

 
The ICI Group is responsible for advising and supporting the PSB work with regards to all information, involvement and communications.  
 
All PSB partners are required to support their staff to participate in PSB information, communications and engagement activities, as members of 
ICI Group, as appropriate. 
  

26

P
age 85



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    5 

 

 
 

MONITORING AND EVALUATION 
 

 
All information, involvement and communications activities must be monitored and evaluated effectively. The ICI Group will support the 
ongoing development and delivery of information, involvement and communications throughout the work of the PSB and will work with the 
Objective leads to monitor progress and adapt accordingly. 
 
As and when activities relating to each area is complete, feedback should be provided to the ICI Group on the outcomes and lessons learnt (using 
the Participation Cymru evaluation form). Key lessons learnt and support with ongoing work must also be provided to the ICI Group, as appropriate.  
 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

 

In order to ensure compliance with this strategy, members of the PSB will: 

 Promote and champion PSB objectives and any information, involvement and communications activities relating to them; 

 Champion and prioritise a co-productive approach to information sharing, involving and communicating with communities and other 
stakeholders; 

 Develop information sharing, involvement and communications skills within their individual organisations, as appropriate; 

 Be the link between the PSB and their individual organisation in order to maintain effective information, involvement and communications;  

 Recognise each other’s  different constraints such as the resources and timescales; 

 Receive regular updates from the ICI Group (via the SPB) and  provide appropriate advice, assistance and recommendations as 
appropriate; 

 Promote the PSB to the staff within their own organisation, providing regular updates and links to Our Cwm Taf website  

 Commit resources, including staff time, to support information, involvement and communications activities as appropriate. 
 

In order to ensure compliance with this strategy, Objective leads will: 

 Promote and champion PSB work and any information, involvement and communications activities relating to them; 

 Champion and prioritise a co-productive approach to involving and communicating with communities and other stakeholders; 

 Complete a PSB Information, Involvement  and Communications Activities Plan, embedding the principles outlined in this strategy; 

 Seek the advice, assistance and recommendations of the ICI Group; 

 Ensure all relevant information, involvement and communications activity is carried out under the appropriate PSB branding; 

 Seek the support of the lead organisations’ information, involvement and communications officers, to provide relevant messages. These 
can then be shared with other PSB organisations,(subject to ICI Group approval; 

27

P
age 86



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    6 

 

 Manage all information, involvement and communications activity effectively, making appropriate strategic engagement links; 

 Contribute to the facilitation of information, involvement and communications as appropriate; 

 Provide regular updates to the ICI Group and receive additional guidance as appropriate; 

 Measure impact and evaluate information, involvement  and communications activity at the end of each project and report to the ICI 
Group on lessons learnt; 
 

In order to ensure compliance with this strategy, members of the ICI Group will: 

 Promote and champion PSB objectives and any information, involvement and communications activities relating to them; 

 Champion and prioritise co-production when informing, involving and communicating with communities and other stakeholders; 

 Provide the PSB (via the SPB) with regular updates on engagement and communication activity; 

 Advise project leads on completing a PSB Information, Involvement  and Communications Activities Plan, including designing and 
developing activity which embeds the principles of this strategy; 

 Provide ongoing advice, assistance and recommendations on information, involvement  and communications activity, contacts, resources 
and strategic links; 

 Collate impact and evaluation reporting of all PSB information, involvement and communications activity and monitor lessons learnt; 

 Review this strategy and update as appropriate. 
  

 

  

28

P
age 87



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    7 

 

APPENDIX A: CWM TAF PSB ICI ACTIVITIES FOR 2018-2019 

 

CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD 
ICI KEY ACTIVITIES 2018-2019 

 
 
 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

PSB profile 

raising  

Explaining in very simple terms 

what the PSB is. 

 

* Who is on it and how does it 

work? 

* What is its purpose? 

* What does it mean for the 

public? 

* Explain what the workstreams 

are and what they hope to 

achieve 

* Explain how the public can be 

involved in the work of the PSB 

* Promote and encourage 

attendance at PSB engagement 

events  

Social media; TV screens and websites of 

all individual PSB organisations  

 

Press release for media using a case 

study of a project where organisations 

have worked together and achieved a 

positive outcome 

 

Our Cwm Taf website 

  

Work with young people on ‘young 

person’s PSB’. 

 

Easy read version developed and 

promoted with People’s First. 

Comms leads to draft 

key messages/ 

members of the 

Information, 

Communications and 

Involvement Group 

(ICI) to cascade 

through their 

organisations   

All ICI Group leads to 

contribute to content 

of quarterly 

newsletter. 

Throughout the 

year. 

29

P
age 88



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    8 

 

* Promotion of the Our Cwm Taf 

video clip  

 

*Profiles of the organisation leads 

on the PSB – who are they and 

what role does their organisation 

play on the PSB 

 

Publication of quarterly newsletter 

Partners’ Events calendar on Our 

Cwm Taf website. 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

Publication of 

the Wellbeing 

Plan  

Key aims to be extracted and 

promoted in simple language  

i.e. The Public Services Board 

has published a Wellbeing Plan 

for Cwm Taf with the aim of 

tackling poverty and improving 

well-being through 

organisations working together 

and targeting their efforts in 

identified communities.  

All channels including media 

 

Spokespeople for interviews  

Comms leads to draft 

press release/ key 

messaging around 

the publication. 

 

 

 

May 2018 

  

30

P
age 89



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    9 

 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

 Piloted in Cwm Taf – plan to roll it 

out across PSB organisations  

ICI group support leads to 

develop ICI Strategy for each 

Well-being Objective.   

  January 2019 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

Thriving 

Communities: 

Place based 

approach – 

focus on a 

community 

intervention that 

could be shared 

  PSB /SPB needs to 

draft a delivery plan 

identifying what each 

organisation is doing 

in the two 

communities for initial 

targeted intervention 

 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

Healthy People: 

One Small 

Change – 

healthy 

behaviours  

campaign  

ICI group support leads to 

develop ICI Strategy for each 

Wellbeing Objective.   

   

January 2019. 

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

31

P
age 90



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    10 

 

Strong 

Economy 

ICI group support leads to 

develop ICI Strategy for each 

Wellbeing Objective.   

 As above  

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

Tackling 

Loneliness and 

Isolation 

ICI group support leads to 

develop ICI Strategy for each 

Wellbeing Objective.   

   

Promotion of 

PSB website 

Production of content by each 

PSB organisation to populate the 

website – these need to be 

examples ideally of where they 

have worked with partners for the 

benefit of the community  

ICI group support leads to 

develop ICI Strategy for each 

Well-being Objective.   

This content can be turned into press 

stories/ social media content highlighting 

the collaborative work of the PSB 

Comms leads and 

members of the 

Information, 

Communication and 

Involvement Group 

Throughout 2018  

Key activity   Method Channels Leads When  

The Cwm Taf 

workforce  

ICI group support public services 

to come together to develop 

understanding of 5 ways of 

working in relation to the Well-

being Objectives 

 As above – tangible 

actions to develop the 

workforce in each of 

the two pilot areas 

need to be agreed by 

the PSB/SPB.  

 

32

P
age 91



 

 
 

Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 
    11 

 

 

APPENDIX B: LIST OF STANDARDS WHICH UNDERPIN THIS STRATEGY 

 

 Participation Cymru’s National Principles for Public Engagement in Wales; 

 Children and Young People’s National Participation Standards (2016); and The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child; 

 The Older People’s Commissioner’s Best Practice Guidance for Engagement and Consultation with Older People on Changes to Community 
Services in Wales;  

 The Equality Act (2010); and 

 Other local and national good practice in engagement and communications. 
 

33

P
age 92

http://www.wcva.org.uk/what-we-do/participation-cymru
https://downloads.unicef.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2010/05/UNCRC_united_nations_convention_on_the_rights_of_the_child.pdf?_ga=1.109366848.414531122.1492696297
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/Libraries/Uploads/Community_Services_Guidance_for_LAs.sflb.ashx
http://www.olderpeoplewales.com/Libraries/Uploads/Community_Services_Guidance_for_LAs.sflb.ashx
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2010/15/contents


Document Name: Information, Communication and Involvement Strategy 
Owner: Chair of ICE Group 
Version: 1 / January 2019 
Status: Draft 
Approved by SPB: -
Approved by PSB: -
Date for review: 2020

34
Page 93

www.ourcwmtaf.wales


 
 

1 
Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

 Information, Communication and Involvement (Engagement) Group 

Terms of Reference January 2019 

BACKGROUND  

The Information, Communication and Involvement ‘ICI’ group has been created by Cwm Taf Public 
Services Board (PSB) and Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) in response to the requirements of the 
Well-being of Future Generations Act. Originally established as the Public Engagement Group, the 
‘PEG’, the group was revised and reconfigured to reflect the broader need to communicate with and 
inform, as well as be informed by, our communities. 
 
 
PURPOSE OF THE ICI GROUP 

ICI is made up of the three composite strands of Information, Communication and Involvement 
(Engagement) with assigned roles and responsibilities:  

 

APPROACH 

The approach and work of ICI will be iterative and fluid, adapting to reflect the changing needs and 

priorities emerging from our communities as well as the Public Services Board. 

In all approaches, ICI will adopt and adhere to the five ways of working as set out in the Well-being 

of Future Generations Act – thinking long term, acting to prevent, considering how to integrate, 

acting to collaborate and ensuring involvement for the people of Cwm Taf. The group will also 

support the PSB’s contribution to the seven well-being goals. 

The group will draw on the expertise of its members to maximise opportunities for the PSB to 

inform, communicate and involve. 

35
Page 94

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 
 

2 
Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

MEMBERSHIP 

The chairs of the Information and Intelligence workstream, the Communications network and the 

Engagement (Involvement) group will meet with the PSB support team, in line with SPB meetings. 

The collective ICI group must be chaired by the lead/Chair from one of the three composite strands 

who attends SPB and provides a board update. 

The wider group, including members of the subgroups, will meet twice a year.  

Membership of the ICI sub-groups should reflect that of the PSB partnership with attendees from (at 

a minimum): 

Cwm Taf Health Board/Public Health team 

Interlink 

Merthyr Tydfil County Borough Council 

Natural Resources Wales 

Rhondda Cynon Taf County Borough Council 

South Wales Fire and Rescue 

South Wales Police 

VAMT 

 
Appropriate colleagues should attend the subgroups as the representative for their organisation, i.e. 

a member of the communication team should be involved in the comms network, the engagement 

team in the involvement group and data/performance in the information and intelligence 

workstream. 

ICI will be supported by the Data and Communications/Engagement leads from within the PSB 

Support Team. 

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES 

ICI will create a sustainable partnership through: 

Information Communication Involvement 

Establishing and demonstrating the conditions for continuous improvement in practice and 
performance 

Supporting and facilitating the sharing of good practice, expertise and resources for the benefit of 
all stakeholders across Cwm Taf. 

Increase the emphasis on, and value of, a Cwm Taf identity 

Supporting the co-ordination and publication of key strategies and plans 

Supporting and demonstrating 
(progress on) objectives 

Capturing and communicating 
the work of the PSB 

Advocating and championing 
involvement and co-
production through on-going 
conversations 

Providing a reporting 
mechanism and repository 
against common priorities and 
targets 

Promoting success stories Signposting to community 
groups to best involve and 
capture citizen voice 

Establishing and 
demonstrating the conditions 
for continuous improvement 
in practice and performance 

Exploring opportunities and 
methods to communicate with 
our communities 

Ensuring involvement is done 
across the board, including 
with seldom heard groups. 

36
Page 95

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 
 

3 
Agenda Item 8vi_Updates from Boards_SPBFEB19 

Inform and help to drive 
operational decision making  
 

  

 

 

GOVERNANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

Meetings between the sub-groups leads will be held every six-eight weeks as needed.  In the period 

between meetings, communication and directions will be provided through email, and the Chair, or 

representative. 

ICI agendas and papers will be shared with the group in advance of the meetings taking place to 

allow members of the group to comment. Requests for additional items will also be sent. 

The group will be directed by the SPB, for the work it undertakes. Updates on ICI’s activity and 

progress will be provided to SPB as a board update. Any challenges or requests for support will also 

be escalated to SPB for resolving or decision as appropriate, and the group requests clear steer also 

be filtered back from SPB. 

 

The Terms of Reference for the group will be reviewed in line with a change of ICI Chair and those of 

the Strategic Partnership Board. 

ALIGNMENT TO OTHER BOARDS 

The workstream will support and align to the strategic principles and aims of the wider PSB and Cwm 

Taf partnerships. 

37
Page 96

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


Cwm Taf SPB 
Information Pack 

19 February 2019, 14:00 - 17:00
SWFRS HQ, Llantrisant, CF72 8LX.
Parking is available on-site. Please note ID will be required for access. 

Page 97

www.ourcwmtaf.wales


SAFIWCH Y DYDDIAD 

20 Mawrth 2019 - 10am tan 3pm 

LLEOLIAD CANOLOG YNG CAERDYDD I’W GADARNHAU 

BYRDDIAU PARTNERIAETH RHANBARTHOL A BYRDDAU GWASANAETHAU 
CYHOEDDUS: YSTYRIED TREFNIADAU SYDD YN YMDDANGOS 

Mae gan BGCs a BPRs rolau gwahanol ond ategol wrth wella llesiant yn eu 
hardaloedd. Mae'n bwysig bod y gwaith hwn yn cyd-fynd, a bod gan y byrddau hynny 
yr hyblygrwydd i ystyried trefniadau yn lleol ac yn rhanbarthol sy'n gweithio orau 
iddynt. 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn awyddus i hyrwyddo datblygiad parhaus y trefniadau 
hyn, i annog dysgu a rhannu rhwng ardaloedd lleol a rhanbarthau ledled Cymru. 

Mae'r byrddau bellach wedi cwblhau'r broses gynllunio (cynlluniau ardal BPR a 
chynlluniau llesiant lleol y BGC) ac mae ganddynt eglurder ar ffocws eu 
gweithgareddau. Fydd y digwyddiad yn dod â’r rheini sy'n ynghlwm i gwaith y 
byrddau at ei gilydd i drafod sut maent yn gweithredu'n ymarferol. Mae hyn yn 
cynnwys nodi meysydd o ddiddordeb cyffredin a sut y caiff y rhain eu trin, a gallant 
ddarganfod ffyrdd o alinio’r gwaith ymhellach. Bydd Gweinidogion yn bresennol ac 
yn awyddus i glywed am eich profiadau. 
 
Felly, rydym yn gwahodd cynrychiolwyr o Fyrddau Gwasanaeth Cyhoeddus a 
Fyrddau Partneriaeth Rhanbarthol i ddod at ei gilydd i rannu eu profiadau a'u barn. 
 
Bydd y digwyddiad yn gyfle i; 

 Rhannu gwybodaeth a dysgu o bob cwr o Gymru am sut mae gwahanol 
fyrddau wedi gweithio allan eu rolau a'u cyfrifoldebau priodol 

 Dysgu fwy gan Weinidogion am y cyd-destun cenedlaethol ar gyfer y ddau 
Fwrdd, a sut y gallai fod yn cyd-fynd â blaenoriaethau lleol 

 Trafod trefniadau yn y dyfodol ac ystyried sut y gellir eu cefnogi'n 
genedlaethol yn y dyfodol 

Disgwylir y bydd llefydd yn gyfyngedig, felly a allech chi ystyried enwebu 2-3 o 
gynrychiolwyr o bob BGC a phob BPR. 

Anfonir agenda lawn at y cynrychiolwyr hynny sy'n cofrestru bwriad i fynychu at 
LGPartnerships@gov.wales - rhowch wybod i ni enwau a theitlau'r cynrychiolwyr a 
fydd yn mynychu o'ch ardal / bwrdd. 

 

 

 

Page 98

mailto:LGPartnerships@gov.wales


SAVE THE DATE 

20th March 2019 – 10am until 3pm 

CARDIFF CENTRAL VENUE TBC 

Regional Partnership Boards and Public Services Boards: REFLECTING ON 
EMERGING ARRANGEMENTS 

PSBs and RPBs have distinct but complementary roles in the improvement of well-
being in their areas. It is important that this work aligns, and that boards have the 
flexibility to consider arrangements locally and regionally that best suit them. 

Welsh Government is keen to promote the continued development of these 
arrangements, to encourage shared learning between local areas and regions 
across the country.  

The boards have now completed the planning process (RPB area plans and PSB 
local wellbeing plans) and have clarity on the focus of their activities. This event will 
bring those involved in PSBs and RPBs together to reflect on how they are operating 
in practice. This includes identifying areas of common interest and how these are 
handled, and can inform ways to further align their work. Ministers will be in 
attendance and are keen to hear about your experiences. 

We are therefore inviting representatives from PSBs and RPBs to come together to 
share their experiences and views. 

The event will be an opportunity to; 

 Share information and learning from across Wales on how different RPBs and 
PSBs have worked out their respective roles and responsibilities 

 Hear from Ministers about the national context for both Boards, and how it 
might align with local priorities 

 Explore future arrangements and consider how they can be supported 
nationally in the future 

It is expected that spaces will be limited, therefore please could you consider 
nominating 2-3 representatives from each PSB and each RPB. 

A full agenda will be sent to those representatives that register their intention to 
attend to LGPartnerships@gov.wales – please let us know the names and titles of 
the delegates that will be attending from your area/board. 

 

Page 99

mailto:LGPartnerships@gov.wales


 
Hyfforddiant am Ddim   
 

Rydyn ni’n cynnal sesiwn hyfforddi dwys hanner diwrnod ar y cyd ag Involve 

UK a'r Foundation for Democracy and Sustainable Development i archwilio theorïau, 

offer ymarferol ac awgrymiadau ar gyfer ymgyfrannu a chyfranogi. Bydd hyn yn 

digwydd yn Ionawr 24ain 13.00 -16.00 ac mae’n agored i holl staff y sector cyhoeddus 

sy’n dymuno gwella’u dealltwriaeth a’u hymagwedd tuag at ymgyfrannu. 
 

Bydd y sesiwn hefyd yn rhoi cyfle i chi gael ateb i’ch cwestiynau ynghyd â chyngor ac 

awgrymiadau oddi wrth arbenigwyr yn y maes, a’r cyfle i rannu eich meddyliau a dysgu 

oddi wrth fynychwyr eraill. 
 

Bydd yn ddefnyddiol i chi ddod a'ch iPad, tabled neu smart phone gyda chi. 
 

Lleoliad:  Swyddfa Comisiynydd Cenedlaethau'r Dyfodol 

Siambrau'r Farchnad 

5-7 Heol Eglwys Fair 

Caerddd CF10 1AT 
 

Os gwelwch yn dda atebwch i clare.johnson@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru. 

_________ 
 
Free Training 
  

We are hosting a half day intensive training session in collaboration with Involve UK and 

the Foundation for Democracy and Sustainable Development to explore the theories, 

practical tools and tips for involvement and participation.  
 

This training will take place on Thursday January 24th  13:00 – 16:00 and is open to all 

public sector staff looking to improve their understanding and approaches to 

involvement. 

  

This session will also give you the opportunity to get questions answered and advice and 

tips from experts in the field, and the chance to share thoughts and learn from other 

attendees. 
 

It would be helpful if you could bring your iPad, tablet or smart phone along.  
 

Venue: Office of the Future Generations Commissioner  

Market Chambers  

5-7 St. Mary Street  

Cardiff 19 1AT 

CF10 1AT  

 

Page 100

https://www.involve.org.uk/
https://www.involve.org.uk/
http://www.fdsd.org/
mailto:clare.johnson@cenedlaethaurdyfodol.cymru
https://www.involve.org.uk/
http://www.fdsd.org/


 
'The People's Platform' Involvement Tool Workshop 
10:30-12:30 Thursday 31 January  
3rd Floor Board Room, Students Union,  
Cardiff University  
Park Place 
Cardiff CF10 3QN 
  
Dear Colleague  
  
Thank you for registering for the workshop in the Boardroom, Cardiff University Students 
Union, Park Place, Cardiff  tomorrow.     
  
It would be useful to bring along your iPad, tablet or smart phone.  Please let us know if you 
are no longer able to attend. 
  
As you may know, last year the Future Generations Commissioner for Wales held a 
'conversation' with stakeholders to inform her policy priorities for her term of office, where 
we trialled, amongst other things, the SenseMaker involvement tool to collect stories and 
views. 
  
We have been developing our plans for how people and communities can continue to be 
involved in our work. The purpose of the workshop will be to share a new involvement tool 
amongst others, called 'The People's Platform'.  Based on SenseMaker, this will allow 
citizens the opportunity to influence policy and for organisations and public bodies to better 
understand the communities they serve.  
  
We are very keen to share how this tool can be used by you and how its data can be shared 
across organisations.  We are looking for organisations to collaborate with, who can use this 
tool to help us involve communities and citizens across Wales.   
   
We'd also be interested in hearing your general thoughts and experience on involvement 
and what we can collectively do to ensure citizens voices are listened to and acted upon.   
  
 
 
 

 

Page 101

https://www.google.com/maps/place/Cardiff+University+Students'+Union/@51.4881961,-3.1787085,18z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x486e1cc72c707061:0x2e7fee79f4d09cc1!8m2!3d51.4883738!4d-3.1774588
https://www.google.com/maps/place/Cardiff+University+Students'+Union/@51.4881961,-3.1787085,18z/data=!4m5!3m4!1s0x486e1cc72c707061:0x2e7fee79f4d09cc1!8m2!3d51.4883738!4d-3.1774588


Cwm Taf Public Services Board – Strategic Partnership Board 
Work Programme Jan 2019 – March 2020 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

Updated_ Jan 2019 Cwm Taf PSB_Strategic Partnership Board Work Programme Jan 19-Mar 20 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Meeting Date Item and Brief Outline  Responsible Officer  Open / Exempt   

Standing Items 
 Welcome, Declaration of Interest, Minutes of Previous Meeting, Actions Arising, Update from SPB Chair (including PSB and Joint Overview 

and Scrutiny Committee Updates), Information Items, Any Other Business, Chairs Review 

Quarterly 
Recurring Items 

 Performance Against Delivery Plans (inc Risk Register) 

 Budget  

 Updates from Boards 

 SPB Work Programme 

 PSB Work Programme  - information only 

 Chair of SPB 

 C Lee  

 Board Leads 

 Chair of SPB 

 Info Only 

 Open 

 Open 

 Open 

 Open 

 Open 

6th November 
2018 

1. Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan – Risk Register 

 Discussion regarding existing risks, proposed template and PSB Risk Register 

Chair of SPB  Open 

2. Arrangements to Support the Production of the PSB’s First Statutory Annual Report 

 Aim to identify further collaborative opportunities and agreement of items for inclusion in annual 

report 

N DeLonghi / ALL  Workshop 

3. Updates from Boards (to be re-introduced as standing item in subsequent meetings) 

 Cwm Taf Community Safety Partnership Board and Substance Misuse Area Planning Board 

 Cwm Taf Safeguarding Board 

 Cwm Taf Together for Mental Health Partnership Board 

 Regional Planning Board 

 Valleys Task Force 

Board Leads Open 

4. Meeting Schedule and Forward Work Programme  

 Proposed meeting schedule until March 2020 and consideration of future work programme 

Chair of SPB Open 

8th January 
2019  

Performance Management Framework 

 Update following on from November ’18 PSB – workshop to be facilitated by Data Cymru 

 Including consideration of delivery from 19/20 onwards 

Chair of SPB – 

with Data Cymru 

Workshop 

Information, Communication and Engagement (ICE) Report (Inc as Part of Board Updates) 

 Inc update from Information and Intelligence work stream 

Chair of ICE Open 

 

P
age 102



Cwm Taf Public Services Board – Strategic Partnership Board 
Work Programme Jan 2019 – March 2020 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

Updated_ Jan 2019 Cwm Taf PSB_Strategic Partnership Board Work Programme Jan 19-Mar 20 

 

 

  

Meeting Date Item and Brief Outline  Responsible Officer  Open / Exempt   

 

One Small Change Campaign 

 Review of report prior to seeking PSB approval. 

Angela Jones Open 

Academi Wales Board Member Training – Healthy Boards  

 Updated programme for information only 

Chair  Open 

PSB Budget and Support Team  C. Lee  

Cwm Taf PSB Employability Pledge Lead – Alyn Owen Open 

19th February 
2019  

PSB – First Annual Report 

  consideration of key achievements and requirements for Annual Report – link to JOSC timescales 

Lead  - Nadia De-

Longhi 

Open 

Information, Communication and Engagement Report (as part of Other Boards Update) 

 Inc resource requirements 

 Welsh language requirements  

 Young person’s version of plan 

Chair of ICE Open 

Draft Delivery Plans 2019/20 onwards 

  consideration of requirements for delivery beyond the 1 year plans 

Lead – Chair of 

SPB 

Open 

Employability Pledge Update Lead – Alyn Owen Open 

Performance Management and Evaluation Framework Support Officer? Open 

Shift Towards Prevention 

 Presentation from Chair 

Chair of SPB Open 

P
age 103



Cwm Taf Public Services Board – Strategic Partnership Board 
Work Programme Jan 2019 – March 2020 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

Updated_ Jan 2019 Cwm Taf PSB_Strategic Partnership Board Work Programme Jan 19-Mar 20 

 

 
Consideration for Future Meetings: 
 

 Any requirements from Offender Management Sub Group (to be notified by Sub Group) 

Meeting Date Item and Brief Outline  Responsible Officer  Open / Exempt   

02nd April 2019  
 

Annual Report Requirements 

 Recurring until final approved –review draft prior to May PSB 

Lead - Nadia De-

Longhi 

Open 

 

Delivery Plan Requirements 

 Recurring until final approved – agree presentation to PSB in May  

Chair of SPB Open 

 

Future Well-Being Assessment Requirements 

 Begin to consider timescales and requirements for the well-being assessment for the 2023 plan 

onwards need to be considered 

Chair / ALL  Open 

 

Consideration of Future Work Plan  items  

 Key strategies and plans 

 Appraisal of values 

Continuous improvement in practice and performance 

Chair of SPB / ALL Open 

 

Sustainable Travel for SPB / PSB 

 Active and sustainable travel options for PSB and Sub Groups 

Nadia DeLonghi Open 

 

SPB Terms of Reference (based on PSB TOR May 19) 

 Review and approval of Tor 

 Including criteria for consideration at SPB for escalation to PSB  

Chair of SPB Open 

Performance Management Framework 

 Consider update for PSB 

Chair of SPB  Open 

Cwm Taf Estates Pilot 

 Consider any requirements from PSB update in May 2019 

RCTCBC Lead Open 

Consider future Chair / Vice Chair requirements  Chair of SPB Open 

Corporate Volunteering Event 

 Discussion around potential for PSB Give and Gain type event / Links to employability pledge 

Chair of SPB Open 

P
age 104



Cwm Taf Public Services Board – Strategic Partnership Board 
Work Programme Jan 2019 – March 2020 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

Updated_ Jan 2019 Cwm Taf PSB_Strategic Partnership Board Work Programme Jan 19-Mar 20 

 Review of Risk Register in line with delivery – delay until new delivery requirements are known  
 TOR and future work plans moved from February to April 2019 and will be dependent on review of PSB TOR (SCHEDULED FOR MAY 19) 
 Academi Wales Training Offer – further consider with Bridgend PSB 
 Update to PSB re: Evaluation Framework and Delivery from 19/20 onwards (challenge on targets etc..) 
 Agree date of TOR review, linked to PSB TOR review 
 Agree Criteria for open / closed papers / meetings in line with PSB and TOR 
 Consider meeting schedule and workplans for future 12 / 18 months in October 2019 

 
 

P
age 105



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

                                                     
 
CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD - JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                     

 

 

 

Overview of Cwm Taf Well-being Objectives Delivery Plans 

 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Committee) with oversight 
of the progress made against the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan Objective ‘Strong 
Economy’. 
 
The report of the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) attached at Appendix 1 sets 
out progress made in respect of Strong Economy first year delivery plan.    This 
report was presented to the SPB at its most recent meeting on the 19th February 
2019. 
 
Alyn Owen, Merthyr Tydfil CBC, is the Lead for Strong Economy and will present 
the report to Committee.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review the SPB Report at Appendix 1 and :- 
i. Consider :- 

a) the extent of progress to date,  
b) the extent to which it is evident that differences are being made to 

communities and citizens within Cwm Taf in improving the Social, 
Economic, Environmental and Cultural Well-being of the area.  

ii. Identify any further information it would like to consider in support of the 
delivery of the Well-being Plan and how this could be most effectively 
presented to Committee at future meetings. 

 
  

Report Author Alyn Owen – Merthyr Tydfil CBC / 
Strong Economy Objective lead  

Committee Date 22.03.2019 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 5



 
 
 

3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 
 

3.1 As Members are aware, the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan 2018-2023 was published 
on the 4th of May 2018 and contained four Objectives:- 
 

 Thriving Communities 
 Healthy People 
 Strong Economy 
 Loneliness & Isolation (cross cutting Objective)  

 
The Delivery Plans for each objective within the Well-being Plan were approved by 
the Public Service Board (PSB) in July 2018.    These delivery plans were aimed 
at addressing the immediate steps within the Well-being Plan.  
 
An overview of each Delivery Plan was subsequently presented to Committee in 
September 2018.  At that meeting, Committee determined that each Objective 
would be scrutinised in more detail at a future meeting. 
 
Strong Economy is the third Objective to receive this further scrutiny. 
 

4.0 CURRENT POSITON  
 

4.1 Detailed scrutiny of the progress made against delivery plans for each objective 
takes place at the SPB.  An overarching report, of all four Objectives, is then 
submitted to the PSB by the Chair of SPB.    

 

The current progress report to SPB, with regards to delivery against the Strong 
Economy Objective, is included at Appendix 1.  

 

Both SPB and PSB have considered whether the monitoring reports provide 
enough assurance to Members as to the progress in respect of each the Well-
being Objectives.   

 

It is recognised that the delivery of the plan is in its infancy and it is equally 
important to monitor and measure how we are doing things differently as a 
partnership.  It is also widely accepted that the impact of the work undertaken on 
the Objectives may be difficult to measure short term and the Welsh Government 
and Data Cymru are providing support to assist PSB’s with addressing this.  
Specifically in respect of Cwm Taf PSB, Data Cymru are assisting with developing 
an outcomes based evaluation framework to measure the differences made via 
delivery of the Well-being plan. 

 

To assist with monitoring performance and progress, in addition to a RAG rated 
delivery plan and information / data relevant to each objective, the SPB receive a 
Highlight / Exception report.  This Highlight / Exception reports aim to capture key 
achievements, other activities (outside the delivery plans) that contribute to the 
Well-being Plan, what is working well and what is not working well, in addition to 
risks and issues that require escalation to the PSB.   

  
 

  
Page 108



 

5.0 FUTURE REQUIREMENTS   
 
5.1 

 
At the SPB in January 2019 the performance management / evaluation framework 
was considered at a workshop facilitated by Data Cymru, who then produced 
outcome measure proposals based on a workshop discussion at the meeting.  
These will be considered as part of the development of the new Delivery Plans going 
forward and shared to inform the evaluation of year one, including as part of the 
statutory Annual Report. 
  
Consideration also continues to be given to the change of boundaries for Bridgend 
PSB and any impact that this may have on the delivery of Cwm Taf PSB Objectives.  
 
Further updates will be provided to Committee as this work progresses.   
 
 

6.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The priorities for the Strong Economy Objective over the next quarter include:- 
 

 Obtaining signoff of the draft Employability Pledge with a view of having the 
Pledge reviewed and adopted across partner organisations 

 Clarifying the role and intention of the Training Compendium, and developing a 
working group to take it forward. 

 Progress engagement with schools around work-readiness, piloting approaches 
in the Community Zone areas of Upper Rhondda Fach and the Gurnos. 

 Explore opportunities of working with Interlink re: volunteering within public 
sector. 

 Workshop with Data Cymru and developing the outcome statements with the 
Strong Economy Group to inform the second year Delivery Plan. 

 
 
Alyn Owen 
Lead for Strong Economy Objective  
Cwm Taf Public Service Board 
 
 
 
 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPFeb19_5iii 

Well-being 
Objective  /Group 
Name 

Strong Economy 

Lead Officer Alyn Owen, MTCBC 

Key 
Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 
 

Date Red Amber Green White 

19/02/2019 0 1 9 8 

08/01/2019 0 1 8 9 

06/11/2018 0 0 5 13 

18/09/2018 0 0 12 6 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for details of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Strong alignment and support of the existing 
Workforce  
Development workstream: 

 The joint group met on 28th January. Discussion 
focused on the Employability Pledge, Training 
Compendium and the Diagnostic Review of 
Tourism in Cwm Taf. 

Agree Cwm Taf employability pledge: 

 Lowenna Mummery met with partners throughout 
January to go through the elements of the Pledge, 
what was achievable and aspirational, areas 
where work was already underway and any 
potential barriers.  

 Two areas are still in need of further discussion – 
the Welsh language and Living Wage, and the 
group wants clarity around some of the specific 
elements and what they could entail. This will help 
to strengthen the understanding the value in 
having a shared pledge. 

Joint training compendium for Cwm Taf public 
sector 

 Further clarity is still needed around the intention 
of a joint training compendium, how it will be used 
and whether a working group is needed to take the 
work forward / capacity for keeping it as a live 
document. 

 The group discussed whether a more pragmatic 
approach would be to formalise an agreement to 
share training opportunities, particularly statutory 
training such as safeguarding, and explore how to 
collectively offer and undertake shared training on 

Page 111

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

common areas as a pilot, e.g. management 
training. 

Full diagnostic assessment of the visitor economy 
businesses in Cwm Taf: 

 A strategic Cwm Taf level report of the findings 
has been drafted and will be available to SPB for 
the April meeting. Early findings from the review 
and resulting reports show that volunteering within 
the sector is more common than first thought, and 
there are some clear identified training needs. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

Schools’ engagement: No progress since last 
update.  
The plan is to work with two schools, attached to the 
developing Community Zone areas, to explore how 
much schools plan for work readiness in particular 
sectors when setting their curriculum, how pupils feel 
about local career opportunities and apprenticeships 
and try to develop work experience opportunities 
across a range of public sector areas. 
School engagement is planned for the new year, 
potentially starting with pupils in years 8 and 9 (those 
aged 12, 13 and 14). 

What is working 
well and how is 
this being done 
differently (5 
WOWs)? 

 The group collectively challenging each other on 
the elements of the Pledge and identifying areas of 
collaboration, offering shared and improved 
opportunities for the people of Cwm Taf. 

 The Valley’s Regional Park recently announced six 
of its gateway sites, including Cyfarthfa Park in 
Merthyr, Ynysangharad Park and  Dare Valley 
Park in RCT. The group will continue to collaborate 
with the WG project and explore the potential to 
maximise opportunities arising from this work. 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the 
challenges / 
risks? 
 
 

 Capacity and resourcing worked linked to the 

Employability Pledge was frequently brought up in 

the group – particularly in terms of volunteering 

(both in terms of workforce going out, and 

members of the community coming in). 

 Discussions around shared pool of applicants / 

volunteers / apprenticeships could have GDPR 

implications. A joint agreement needs to be put in 

place amongst PSB partners to inform a consent 

option on forms.  

 Steer is requested on what the SPB sees as the 

value and purpose of a joint Training Compendium 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

 SPB signoff of the draft Pledge. Have the Pledge 
reviewed and adopted across partner 

Page 112

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_ (Strong Economy) _SPBFebruary19 

organisations 

 Clarify the role and intention of the Training 
Compendium. 

 Progress engagement with schools around work-
readiness 

 Explore opportunities of working with Interlink re: 
volunteering within public sector. 

 Workshop with Data Cymru and developing the 
outcome statements with the Strong Economy 
Group to inform the second year Delivery Plan. 

What needs to be 
escalated to 
PSB? 
 

Nothing at this stage 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms and 
Engagement. 

 ICE to promote the training compendium and 
employability pledge, once agreed and signed off 

 

 Help with engagement – specifically around 
schools and workforce. 

 

Page 113

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.1.1 Cwm Taf SPB Workforce Plan & Recruitment: This will present a baseline 

and overview analysis of one public sector at Cwm Taf, to identify the 

current workforce composition.  It will identify the occupational groups 

that are in large demand and limited supply (i.e. engineers, social workers, 

fire fighters, etc.), and will help to predict future vacancy levels across the 

SPB. 01-Jun-19

Joanne Davies / Beth 

Winder (CTLHB)

Linked to the Commitment/employability pledge 

(identified as a quick win). Work has been 

undertaken to frame the pledge aroundthe 

immediate steps as identified in the Well-being 

Plan. The Pledge has been discussed with 

individual organisations and as a collective, and 

some discussion have been had around making 

best use of a pool of potential employees and 

avoid competing tensions, e.g. care staff needed 

for social services and the health board

3.1.2
Building an External Workforce : College & School Engagement: The Public 

Sector is the largest employer within Cwm Taf.  We will promote it as a 

sector of choice schools and colleges, through focus groups, school 

engagement, work placement opportunities and developing talent pipeline 

opportunities.  This will ensure that the SPB has a skilled external labour 

market in place. 01-Jun-19 Sue Walker (MTCBC)

Sue Walker now leads this strand and this has 

been identified as a priority area. The school 

engagement undertaken by this workstream  will 

look to pilot approaches linked to the 

curriculum, skills needs and pupil 

readiness/attitude towards the world of work 

and apprenticeships. Work is also linked to the 

volunteering aspects within the cross cutting 

theme of tackling loneliness and isolation. 

3.1.3
Building an External Workforce : Employability: The Cwm Taf Commitment 

Pledge will help to identify the numbers of job opportunities that will 

become available.  The SPB will work with the National Training Federation 

Wales to maximise its investment on the apprenticeship levy to build 

employability skills and talent pipelines through shared apprenticeship 

programmes, internship, graduate, job trial opportunities. 01-Jun-19

Deb Ryan-Newton. 

Maria Price (MTCBC)

 Apprenticeships continue a key focus, with the 

Strong Economy group looking at how to 

develop a single point of entry for 

apprenticeships in the public sector.  Work 

around the pledge and what it means and how it 

can be adopted has been the focus of the work, 

including having taster days within local 

businesses/PSB partners and organisations being 

responsible for engaging with schools (linked to 

school and college engagement). 

3.1.4
Building an Internal Workforce : Training: The SPB training compendium 

will bring financial savings whilst increasing opportunities for training 

simultaneously.  It will also support the consistency of Leadership and 

Management courses, and in ensuring that there are consistent 

arrangements to retain and develop Welsh Language Capacity. 01-Jun-19 Deb Hughes (RCT)

Linked to the development of a training 

compendium of local employment programmes 

and providers (identified as a quick win). RCT 

launched their training compendium in autumn 

2018 but further work is needed regarding a 

joint product, with steer from SPB on what this 

means/how it can be built on by PSB partners.

Milestones

Stimulate and boost the aspirations 

and skills of our people to meet 

public and private sector career 

opportunities: Develop a repeatable 

Workforce Development model to 

address Workforce issues.

Actions

P
age 114



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.1.5

Building a Future Workforce : Retention: The SPB is keen to build its 

relationship with Academi Wales, particularly with the graduate 

programme.   This will assist in the development of a holistic approach to 

performance management and succession planning, encouraging 

colleagues to embrace change as an opportunity for continuous 

development. 01-Jun-19

Fran Donnelly 

(MTCBC)

We have built relationships with Academi Wales 

to engage with the graduate programme and 

Lowenna Mummery's post. This will help us 

develop her to become a potential 

leader/manager of the future.  The experience 

she will gain across a number of public sector 

organisations is paramount in us helping to work 

holistically and increase partnership working. 

Improving the range and access to training 

opportunities, linked to the shared Training 

Compendium, should also increase 

opportunities for continuous development.

3.2.1
Amalgamate recent STEAM figures for Merthyr Tydfil and RCT in order to 

fully understand the economic impact of tourism on the Cwm Taf economy.
Aug-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.2 Mapping tourist ‘hot spots’ across Cwm Taf Aug-18
Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.3
Full Diagnostic Review of hospitality provision (including business need) in 

Cwm Taf
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.4
Full Diagnostic Review of accommodation provision (including business 

need) in Cwm Taf
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)
Completed

3.2.5
Undertake ‘gap analysis’ based on findings of the above, including 

identifying new partners or information sources 
Nov-18

Ryan Barry (MTCBC) 

Ian Christopher (RCT)

Completed for the two separate authorities. 

Work now underway to compile a Cwm Taf 

strategic overview based on findings and next 

steps. Report will be available to SPB in February

3.4.1
Undertake a mapping exercise of local Employment Programmes and 

providers
Sep-18 Deb Ryan-Newton

A mapping exercise of local Employment 

Programmes and providers is underway. 

Information has been gathered on all Work 

Based Learning Providers.  19 providers are 

contracted directly with Welsh Government to 

deliver Apprenticeships and Traineeships across 

Wales. Out of the 19 providers contracted by 

Welsh Government, 14 providers have an 

allocation of grant to deliver in the Cwm Taf 

Region.

3.4.2 Develop a training compendium to be shared with staff Dec-18 Deb Hughes (RCT)
Linked to action 3.1.4. Work ongoing to develop 

a Cwm Taf-wide compendium

3.4.3
Work with local businesses, providers and commissioning services to 

address any identified gaps in training requirements
Jan-19 Paul Gray

N/A - reliant on compendium completion. Some 

needs already identified through the Diagnostic 

Review of the Tourism Sector.

Stimulate and boost the aspirations 

and skills of our people to meet 

public and private sector career 

opportunities: Develop a repeatable 

Workforce Development model to 

address Workforce issues.

Growth and promotion of tourism 

using the assets of our beautiful 

natural environment, heritage and 

culture for the health, prosperity and 

benefit of the whole community and 

alongside the development of the 

Valleys Landscape Park: Undertake a 

full diagnostic assessment of the 

Visitor Economy Businesses in Cwm 

Taf, including statistics, development 

needs and key data.

Align the employment and training 

needs of the sector to the Cwm Taf 

Employment Programmes in the 

respective local authority areas.

P
age 115



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 08/02/2019)

3.4.4
Look for opportunities for ‘informal’ upskilling through on- the-job training 

or corporate volunteering
Jan-19 Deb Ryan-Newton

This will be explored within the tourism sector. 

The diagnostic review identified significant 

numbers volunteering in the accommodation 

and tourism sector and this is something that 

could be further explored, undertaking a training 

needs analysis linked to the work of the 

employment liaison officers

3.4.5
Liaise with schools and HE in Cwm Taf around opportunities for links 

between tourism courses and training opportunities
Feb-19 Sue Walker (MTCBC)

We have identified that, within Merthyr, WBQ 

learning providers have an offer available for 

hospitality, leisure, sport and travel. These need 

to be fully explored to maximise take up in the 

future. This is linked to 3.1.2. 

3.4.6
Explore links between ‘suitable’ volunteering for the Welsh Baccalaureate 

Qualification and leisure/tourism
Feb-19

Sue Walker (MTCBC), 

Deb Ryan-Newton

Through alignment with the ‘Tackling Loneliness 

and Isolation’ objective, we are supporting work 

around worthwhile volunteering linked to the 

Welsh Baccalaureate Qualification (WBQ) and 

Duke of Edinburgh award. 

Volunteering fayres have taken place.                 

Surveys are also being produced for pupils, 

educational establishments and businesses 

around careers in the leisure sector which will 

be rolled out from January. Further work will 

also be explored with the schools in the two 

community zone areas - Pen Y Dre for the 

Gurnos, and Ferndale Community School for 

Upper Rhondda Fach.

3.4.7 Explore potential apprenticeships in the leisure and tourism sector Feb-19
Deb Ryan-Newton; 

Paul Gray

Preparation work is being developed linked to 

the work above

3.4.8

Create links with (corporate) marketing and communication teams to 

create a young person’s guide to Cwm Taf promoted and shared through 

social media

Mar-19 Sue Walker

Not due.

Align the employment and training 

needs of the sector to the Cwm Taf 

Employment Programmes in the 

respective local authority areas.

Develop leisure/tourism as an 

employment and training opportunity

P
age 116



SPBFeb19_Item5iii_StrongEconomy_Appendix2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Strong 

Economy
SE1 Local Development of one Cwm Taf SPB workforce plan N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE2 Local

Calculation of Training spend per head - pre and 

post training compendium
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE3 Local

Predicted employee labour turnover across the 

partnership organisations aligned to the age profile
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE4 Local

X40 accomodation providers assessed as part of 

Cwm Taf Diagnostic Review process
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
SE5 Local

x12 key attractions assessed as part of the Cwm Taf 

Diagnostic Review Process
N/A N/A N/A N/A Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Total economic impact of tourism £235,500,000 N/A £71,530,000 £163,970,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Total visitor days 4,070,000 N/A 1,270,000 2,800,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local STEAM: Staying visitor days 1,631,000 N/A 401,000 1,230,000 Annually MTCBC

Strong 

Economy
Local

STEAM: Total number of FTE jobs supported by 

Tourism
2,933 N/A 917 2,016 Annually MTCBC

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

P
age 117



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 
 

                                                     
 
CWM TAF PUBLIC SERVICES BOARD - JOINT OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY COMMITTEE                     

 

 

 

 

Overview of Cwm Taf Well-being Objectives Delivery Plans 

 

1.0 SUMMARY OF THE REPORT 
 

1.1 To provide the Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee (Committee) with oversight 
of the progress made against the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan cross cutting objective 
of Tackling Loneliness and Isolation. 
 
The report of the Strategic Partnership Board (SPB) attached at Appendix 1 sets 
out progress made in respect of the delivery plan for the cutting theme of Tackling 
Loneliness and Isolation.    This report was presented to the SPB at its most 
recent meeting on the 19th February 2019. 
 
Ian Davy, Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil, is the Lead for Tackling Loneliness and 
Isolation and will present the report to Committee.  
 

2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

2.1 The Committee is requested to review the SPB Report at Appendix 1 and :- 
i. Consider :- 

a) the extent of progress to date,  
b) the extent to which it is evident that differences are being made to 

communities and citizens within Cwm Taf in improving the Social, 
Economic, Environmental and Cultural Well-being of the area.  

ii. Identify any further information it would like to consider in support of the 
delivery of the Well-being Plan and how this could be most effectively 
presented to Committee at future meetings. 

 
  

Report Author Ian Davy – Voluntary Action Merthyr Tydfil / 
Tackling Loneliness and Isolation Objective lead  

Committee Date 22.03.2019 

 

Page 119

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 
3.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND 

 
3.1 As Members are aware, the Cwm Taf Well-being Plan 2018-2023 was published 

on the 4th of May 2018 and contained four Objectives:- 
 

 Thriving Communities 
 Healthy People 
 Strong Economy 
 Loneliness & Isolation (cross cutting Objective)  

 
The Delivery Plans for each objective within the Well-being Plan were approved by 
the Public Service Board (PSB) in July 2018.    These delivery plans were aimed 
at addressing the immediate steps within the Well-being Plan.  
 
An overview of each Delivery Plan was subsequently presented to Committee in 
September 2018.  At that meeting, Committee determined that each Objective 
would be scrutinised in more detail at a future meeting. 
 
Tackling Loneliness and Isolation is the fourth Objective to receive this further 
scrutiny. 
 
 

4.0 CURRENT POSITON  
 

4.1 Detailed scrutiny of the progress made against delivery plans for each objective 
takes place at the SPB.  An overarching report, of all four Objectives, is then 
submitted to the PSB by the Chair of SPB.    

 

The current progress report to SPB, with regards to delivery against the Tackling 
Loneliness and Isolation Objective, is included at Appendix 1.  

 

 
Both SPB and PSB have considered whether the monitoring reports provide 
enough assurance to Members as to the progress in respect of each the Well-
being Objectives.   

 
It is recognised that the delivery of the plan is in its infancy and it is equally 
important to monitor and measure how we are doing things differently as a 
partnership.  It is also widely accepted that the impact of the work undertaken on 
the Objectives may be difficult to measure short term and the Welsh Government 
and Data Cymru are providing support to assist PSB’s with addressing this.  
Specifically in respect of Cwm Taf PSB, Data Cymru are assisting with developing 
an outcomes based evaluation framework to measure the differences made via 
delivery of the Well-being plan. In addition, loneliness and isolation is also 
something that Cwm Taf Regional Partnership Board (RPB) are working to 
address, so there is big potential for collaborative working and a shared approach 
– see report that went to SPB and the RPB’s Transformation Leadership Group 
(TLG) Appendix 3. 

 
 

 
Page 120



 

 

To assist with monitoring performance and progress, in addition to a RAG rated 
delivery plan and information / data relevant to each objective, the SPB receive a 
Highlight / Exception report.  This Highlight / Exception reports aim to capture key 
achievements, other activities (outside the delivery plans) that contribute to the 
Well-being Plan, what is working well and what is not working well, in addition to 
risks and issues that require escalation to the PSB.   

  
  

5.0 FUTURE REQUIREMENTS   
 
5.1 

 
At the SPB in January 2019 the performance management / evaluation framework 
was considered at a workshop facilitated by Data Cymru, who then produced 
outcome measure proposals based on a workshop discussion at the meeting.  
These will be considered as part of the development of the new Delivery Plans going 
forward and shared to inform the evaluation of year one, including as part of the 
statutory Annual Report. 
  
Consideration also continues to be given to the change of boundaries for Bridgend 
PSB and any impact that this may have on the delivery of Cwm Taf PSB Objectives.  
 
Further updates will be provided to Committee as this work progresses.   
 
 

6.0 NEXT STEPS 
 

6.1 The priorities for the Tackling Loneliness and Isolation Objective over the next 
quarter include:- 
 

 Confirm a collaborative way forwards with the work of the RPB – based on the 
recommendations as outlined in Appendix 3  
 

 
Ian Davy 
Lead for Tackling Loneliness and Isolation 
Cwm Taf Public Service Board 
 
 
 
 

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

Cwm Taf PSB – Strategic Partnership Board 
 

Highlight / Exception Reporting from Objective Leads  
 
Agenda No SPBFeb19_5iv 

Well-being 
Objective  /Group 
Name 

Tackling loneliness and isolation 

Lead Officer Ian Davy, VAMT 

Key 
Achievements 
and any quick 
wins 
 

Date Red Amber Green White 

19/02/2019 0 1 11 14 

08/01/2019 0 1 10 15 

06/11/2018 1 0 8 17 

18/09/2018 1 0 19 6 

 
See Appendix 1 and 2 for details of progress against 
delivery plans and measures. 
 
Work is progressing for action D around Information, 
Advice and Assistance. This work doesn’t have a 
clear timeline, so whilst work is planned and being 
explored, it is more important that the PSB’s Well-
being Plan and Social Service and Well-being Board’s 
Regional Plan are trying to achieve the same thing 
and in the same timeline, so this is beyond some 
control. A paper (appendix 3) of recommendations will 
go to TLG on 26 February. This work will also be 
influenced by the health board boundary change and 
the impact that has on the SSWB. 
The reference group has not met since 7 November 
as an agreement was made to not call a meeting 
unless there were updates to discuss.  

 
An agreement to develop a community-led model 
around minimum standards, collaborating with 
Building Communities Trust in Aberfan and Penywaun 
has been progressed. Ian Davy and Kirsty Smith met 
with the Invest Local group of Aberfan in early 
January. Again, if this is taken forward in collaboration 
with the work of the SSWB then there are 
opportunities to work with Invest Local in Caerau 
through BAVO.  
 
Volunteering / forming relationships with schools 
and colleges 

 OurCwmTaf signposts to the volunteering Wales 
and infoengine 

Page 123

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

 Signup to infoengine (and Dewis) systems was 
encouraged at the volunteering fayres, and CVCs 
AGMs.  

 Feedback session has taken place with Treorchy 
with a view to develop a volunteering fayre toolkit 
and agree a way forward – e.g. incorporating a ‘get 
involved in your area’ slot on PSE days or contact 
sessions with local groups. Positive feedback also 
received from Merthyr College who would be keen 
to do something similar for volunteering week, 
although the timing may not work as this falls in 
June.  

 Volunteering will be celebrated at the upcoming 
Crystal Trophy awards evening; the PSB website 
will signpost for applications and help to support 
the event. 

Pilot opportunities in Community Hubs 

 Work is still ongoing to engage with communities 
to promote the opportunities, signpost (SPOC) and 
create the neighbourhood network / make the most 
of the community connector roles. Louise is firmly 
established with Fern Partnership, and Ceri has 
recently started in the Gurnos. 

Review the funding and delivery of existing 
befriending services 

 This strongly aligns to actions identified in the 
Regional Plan  

 Appendix 3 shows recommendations linked to 
befriending services, and asks that strong 
consideration is given to include befriending 
services in the 2019/20 Integrated Care Fund 
allocation. 

Other Activities 
that contribute to 
the delivery of the 
Well-being plan.   
 

As a cross-cutting theme, the work in this area is 
interwoven across all Objectives and provides 
opportunities to strengthen alignment to other local 
partnership boards, particularly the RPB. 
 
A collaborative response on Tackling Loneliness and 
Isolation was pulled together for WG consultation on 
Connected Communities 

What is working 
well and how is 
this being done 
differently (5 
WOWs)? 

 Looking to test approaches and mapping in the 
Thriving Community Objective 

 Working in collaboration with colleagues working 
to deliver the Strong Economy through developing 
and strengthening volunteering opportunities, 
through Welsh Baccalaureate work. 

 Wide range of opportunities for integration and 
collaboration between Boards. 

Page 124

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


 

Highlight / Exception Report_Loneliness&Isolation _SPBFeb19 

What is not 
working well and 
what are the  
challenges / 
risks? 
 
 

 Shared model of social prescribing / community 
brokers 

 Longer-term and more sustainable funding for 
befriending services 

 Variations in the levels of peer support and 
community assets available across Cwm Taf 

 Risk and challenge to making any tangible 
progress on this without buy-in and support across 
both PSB and RPB – need for agreed approach. 
Much of being able to progress work on this 
Objective is dependent on support and buy in from 
SSWB. 

Priorities for Next 
Quarter 

Confirm a collaborative way forwards – based on the 
recommendations as outlined in Appendix 3.   

What needs to be 
escalated to 
PSB? 
 

 The Potential for the risk of overlap - if no 
resolution at SPB 

 PSB to request updated position on clarity of 
alignment between PSB and RPB 

What else can 
SPB members do 
to progress this 
Objective? Inc. 
information / 
comms and 
Engagement. 

 Partners to share any work being done on an 
individual organisation basis or in collaboration 
that will positively impact on tackling loneliness 
and isolation. 

 Decision around roles and responsibilities across 
the partnership boards on this agenda  

 

 

Page 125

http://www.ourcwmtaf.wales/


SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

a.1
Establish a task and finish group and confirm membership and priorities 

from plan. 
Aug-18 Ian Davy

A group based on (47) Expressions of Interest 

submitted to Ian Davy met Sept 11 and are 

scheduled to meet again Nov 7. The initial group 

included representatives from the learning 

disability group looking at L&I under the RPB. 

Objective leads have been invited to the next 

meet to widen the scope, develop a statement 

of intent and agree a way forward

a.2
Look to emulate success stories by undertaking research to establish best / 

good practice in tackling loneliness and isolation
Aug-18 Ian Davy

Research summary produced

a.3
Use neighbourhood networks to find out about activities which seek to 

achieve the Objective

From 

autumn 

2018

ICE

Work underway, initially started through the 

loneliness and isolation survey. VAMT continue 

to support the Gurnos Community Zone work, 

and Interlink the Ferndale one. Seed funding 

based awarded to Thriving Communities areas 

has been used to appoint community connector 

roles / information and advice roles to support 

and strengthen neighbourhood networks (Ceri 

for the Gurnos, Louise in Ferndale)

a.4
Promote activities, through ICE, which will seek to achieve the Objective – 

i.e. tackle loneliness and isolation.
ICE

ICE will support this work, and website will be a 

tool for this

b.1

Audit of PSB partners current activity that contributes to the Objective 

including ·         Public sector core activity; ·         Commissioned services; 

·         Third sector and community led activity

Ian Davy

b.2 Identify PSB Activity and undertake gap analysis to identify priority groups. Ian Davy

b.3
Use gap analysis to inform / be considered as part of Well-being Delivery 

Plans
Ian Davy

Identified good practice could inform future 

work and challenge how loneliness and isolation 

b.4 Review and evaluate result of challenge Apr-19 Ian Davy Not due.

b.5
Undertake review of the way in which tackling of loneliness and isolation 

has been or can be addressed in all three Well-Being Delivery Plans 
Apr-19 Ian Davy

Ongoing - links made across Plans where 

possible and planned work as the second year 

delivery plans are developed.

c.1

Review the “community volunteering” requirement of the Welsh 

Baccalaureate to explore ways in which contributing to the Objective can 

be improved and maximised

Aug-18 Ian Davy

Complete

c.2

To develop draft proposals for 2018/19 regarding the community challenge 

/ skills challenge aspects of the WBQ to enhance young people’s 

experience of volunteering and community action.

12 July 

workshop

Simon James, as event 

3
rd

 sector rep

Complete

c.3
Work with schools to develop a Cwm Taf model for volunteering and 

improve the value of volunteering ‘as a citizen’

Project 

proposal - 

Year One.

Model tested at volunteering fayres (held in 

Treorchy Comp on 25 Sept and Merthyr College 

18 October). Positive feedback from both, 

further work needed to firm up next steps.

c.4 Pilot the model in identified/nominated schools Sep-18 Events taken place in identified pilot areas

Survey findings summarised and shared with 

reference group.  Three key areas emerged: 

befriending, social prescribing / community 

brokers and community support / peer support.                                                 

Part of the November SPB workshop around 

partners' activity regarding well-being picked up 

some current work and good practice which 

could inform work going forwards.

Template 

out 

autumn 

2018 - 

revised 

deadline 

agreed at 

SPB

Actions Milestones

Working with our communities to 

understand what is important to 

them and how together, we can help 

build support to make improvements.

Target volunteering to include people 

who are lonely or isolated, either 

through joining in or receiving 

support.

Connecting people interested in 

volunteering, along with their specific 

interests, resources and skills.  This 

will provide opportunities to children 

and young people as well as adults 

e.g. linking opportunities for young 

people doing the Welsh 

Baccalaureate or Duke of Edinburgh 

awards with local volunteering 

opportunities and encouraging public 

service employees to enable more 

volunteering in public services that 

help inspire others. This links to 

Objective 3.1 (strong economy)

P
age 126



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

c.6
Link to ‘workforce development’ workstream and ‘strong economy’ well-

being Objective and developing corporate volunteering

Summer 

2018
Sue Walker

Links established and ways of collaborating 

continue to be explored, including using 

volunteering as a way of preparing for the world 

of work. We will explore work that has been 

done in Bridgend College around their 

volunteering fayre, held 17 October - The 

Community Challenge Festival.

c.7 Pilot a Public Sector Employee Volunteering Scheme Jan-19
Workforce Lead to be 

identified

Picked up in conjunction with the Strong 

Economy delivery group and the Employability 

Pledge.

d.1
Agree (at PSB level) minimum standards of levels of Information, 

Assistance and Advice provision in communities.
Oct-18

Ian Davy

d.2
PSB to determine minimum standards. Look for leads and links with 

Neighbourhood Networks.
Oct-18

To be confirmed

d.3
Taking into account actions a.3 – a.4 and develop proposals for 

communities of greatest need as a pilot area. 

Stage 1: 

April 2019 To be confirmed

Not due.

d.5

Volunteering Wales www.volunteering-wales.net as the tool for recruiting 

volunteers and promoting volunteering opportunities (NB live at the 

moment but not official launched as the full product)

From July 

2018

Ian Davy

d.6
Promote info-engine as the directorate for third sector and well-being and 

community services (NB this will merge with Dewis in July 2018)

From July 

2018

Ian Davy

d.7

Work with neighbourhood networks to use these as a tool for promoting 

and sharing as a way of improving information, advice and assistance (IAA) 

and informing single point of contact (SPOC).

Autumn 

2018
ICE Work ongoing

d.8

Establish alignment between Well-being Plan and Social Services and Well-

Being (SSWB) Regional Plan Ongoing Ian Davy

Links between the two Plans and possible areas 

for working together have been established 

however there is no clear way to progress. A 

further request has been made to review the 

recommendations in the Report on Loneliness 

and Isolation  for TLG inFebruary.

An enhanced 'Be Well in Your Community' has 

been drafted as part of the Community Support 

/ Tackling Loneliness and Isolation agenda 

shared by RPB and PSB proposing joint regional 

approach to Community Support (appendix 3).  

A community led approach to deciding and 

delivering minimum standards of IAA is being 

explored in Aberfan and Penywaun (and 

potentially Caerau), as well as being part of the  

developing Community Zone areas.

Advertise volunteering opportunities 

on behalf of community groups, third 

sector, public service organisations 

and businesses.

Infoengine widget has been added to the 

recently launched engagement pages on Our 

Cwm Taf: www.ourcwmtaf.wales/our-

community-matters / 

www.eincwmtaf.cymru/our-community-matters                                                                               

Along with DEWIS, these systems will support 

the SPOC approach online for Cwm Taf, and at 

the two Community Hubs. Work was also 

undertaken at the volunteering fayres to sign 

groups up to the system

Connecting people interested in 

volunteering, along with their specific 

interests, resources and skills.  This 

will provide opportunities to children 

and young people as well as adults 

e.g. linking opportunities for young 

people doing the Welsh 

Baccalaureate or Duke of Edinburgh 

awards with local volunteering 

opportunities and encouraging public 

service employees to enable more 

volunteering in public services that 

help inspire others. This links to 

Objective 3.1 (strong economy)

P
age 127



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

d.9
Cwm Taf PSB Support Team and SSWB Regional Commissioning Unit (when 

in place) to develop jointly owned delivery mechanisms.

Once 

SSWB 

team in 

place Ian Davy

Not due, Commissioning team is in the process 

of being appointed. Impact of health board 

boundary changes also need to be considered.

d.10

Engage co-productively with the Cwm Taf Social Value Forum (SVF) to 

establish a solution focused model for third sector delivery. Ongoing Ian Davy

Social Value Forum took place on 11 December 

(focusing on children and young people) but 

featuring an update from Claire Williams on 

'Stay Well in Your Community' and sharing the 

statement of intent around 'Be Well in Your 

Community'. Feedback and learnings are being 

considered.

d.11

Work with Valleys Landscape Park to pilot the green spaces / social 

prescribing projects

By 2021 

(VTF 

timescale) Ian Davy

Kirsty Harrington has contacted CVCs around 

establishing peer-to-peer networks of  

community groups to support the VRP initiatve. 

There will be community conference held in 

February.

Advertise volunteering opportunities 

on behalf of community groups, third 

sector, public service organisations 

and businesses.

P
age 128



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix1

Action that will Deliver Objective 

('What we need to do")

Ref 

Milestones / Sub Actions  ("How will we do it")

Delivery 

Date 
"Timescales"

Lead "who is 

responsible inc 

Governance 

Arrangements"

Progress - RAG (as at 19/2/19)

e.1
Work towards a public service partner arrangement that will support all 

volunteers in Cwm Taf to obtain DBS checks at Passport level
Apr-19 Ian Davy

CVCs consider this to be core work. List of 

'Trusted Providers' in Cwm Taf obtained and 

shared with Safeguarding who may be better 

suited to take this forward

e.2

Develop a model through Corporate Social Responsibility, to provide a 

central advice and support offer for Cwm Taf voluntary organisations for 

legislative compliance and good practice, e.g., health and safety, 

safeguarding, GDPR, Equalities.

Apr-19 Ian Davy

Not due.

Help with the official parts of 

volunteering e.g. Disclosure and 

Barring Service (DBS) checks, advice 

on supervision and health and safety 

risk assessments.

P
age 129



SPBFeb19_Item5iv_LandI_Appendix2

Local/

National Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT Cwm Taf Wales Merthyr RCT

Loneliness 

and Isolaton L&I1
National

National Survey: Percentage of people feeling 

lonely
17% 20% 17%

Decrease

Loneliness 

and Isolaton L&I2
National

National Survey: Percentage of people (aged16+) 

volunteering
28% 21% 22%

Increase

Direction of 

travel
Frequency

Responsible 

partner
CommentObjective

2017/18 Actual 2018/19
PI ref PI description

P
age 130



1 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

  
 
Cwm Taf Social Services and Wellbeing Partnership Board 
 

 

 
Report to TLG  -  January 2019 
 
Title of Report - Tackling Loneliness and Isolation 
 

 
Author:  Ian Davy 
 

 

PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
The purpose of this report is to brief colleagues on work carried out as part of the 
“Tackling Loneliness and Isolation” cross cutting objective in the Cwm Taf Well Being 
Plan and to ensure engagement and alignment with the Cwm Taf Regional Plan 
 
A draft of the paper was presented to APDIG on 9th January. This version of the 
paper has been enhanced by comments at the meeting.  
 
APDIG were very supportive and recognised the need for more coordination around 
this theme and for all SSWB delivery groups/workstreams/ project leads to have to 
consider in their plans and work programme what they are doing to help address the 
issues as they are cross cutting. The group also welcomed the links with work in 
Bridgend and suggested some further information could be added to the report about 
their Prevention and Wellbeing Group/Strategy. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 Members of the Partnership Board are asked to: 

 Note the research evidence and critical success factors summarised in the 
report 

 Note the Scottish Government Strategy and their priorities and indicators 

 Discuss the Next Steps 

 Endorse the Recommendations 
 
BACKGROUND/INTRODUCTION 
 
1 Context 
 
1.1 “Tackling Loneliness and Isolation” is a cross cutting objective in the Cwm Taf 
Well Being Plan. Ian Davy is the lead officer for this objective and responsible for 
reporting on progress to the Cwm Taf PSB. 
 

Page 131



2 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

The long term vision is that; 

 People will feel more connected and less isolated;  

 People will be more active;  

 There will be increased community capacity to tackle loneliness and isolation; 
and  

 People will have better mental health and well-being 
 
1.2 Welsh Government is consulting on their intention to produce a tackling 
loneliness and social isolation strategy called ‘Connected Communities’. The closing 
date was 15th January and they will publish their strategy by 31st March 2019. 
Attached as an appendix is the Cwm Taf UHB response to the consultation. 
 
1.3 There has already been research led by the third sector, into loneliness and 
isolation in Cwm Taf, using the lived experience of older people (story telling through 
SenseMaker) entitled “From Isolation to Integration”. 
 
2 Research Evidence 
 
The PSB Support Team has reviewed evidence and some key points that emerge 
are: 
 

 Loneliness takes different forms; 
- Emotional loneliness is the absence of a significant other with whom a close 

attachment is formed (a partner or close friend) 
- Social loneliness is the lack of a wider social network of friends, neighbours or 

colleagues 
- Transient loneliness can be temporary, linked to life events 
- Chronic tends to be more long term loneliness 
 

 Loneliness is just as likely to be experienced by young people as older people 
 

 Lifestyle patterns can contribute to loneliness, as well as ethnic group 
 

 Some people are physically or geographically isolated and alone – this doesn’t 
necessarily mean that they feel lonely or socially isolated 

 

 Some people may have a large and varied circle of friends, family and 
neighbours but may still experience feelings of loneliness 

 

 Those at greatest need of intervention are rarely those who are able to, or 
choose to take part in schemes or groups 
 

 Services that help to reduce isolation and loneliness include 
- Information and signposting services 
- Support for individuals 
- Group interventions 
- Social and health promotion interventions 
- Wider community involvement  
- Community referral e.g. Community Connectors 

Page 132



3 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

 

 Users report high satisfaction with services that increase their social interaction 
and community involvement, taking up or going back to hobbies and participating 
in wider community activities 

 

 Longitudinal studies reported that older people who were part of a social group 
intervention had a greater chance of survival than those who had not received 
such a service 
 

 Users of Community Connecter/Coordinator services weren’t as socially isolated 
 

 Befriending services are a cost effective way of reducing depression 
 

 Telephone supported approaches were not effective in reducing loneliness and 
partially effective in reducing social isolation 
 

 A reciprocal relationship exists between loneliness and a person’s health to the 
detriment of their wellbeing.  

 
3 Critical Success Factors 
 
In their review of evidence, the PSB Support Team identified the following critical 
success factors; 
 

 Identifying whether the approach/intervention is aiming to tackle loneliness OR 
social isolation 
 

 Everyone can be affected by loneliness and/or isolation – irrespective of age, 
race, gender, social group, religion etc. Thus universal responses and 
approaches may not always be suitable 

 

 Understanding different types of loneliness and their causes in order to tailor 
prevention and intervention measures 

 

 Addressing and preparing for universal life points that could lead to feelings of 
loneliness, e.g. bereavement or retirement 

 

 Recognising that change happens on the ground – public sector has a role to 
play but communities should lead 

 

 Build on what’s already existing in communities, and where possible, deliver 
through existing channels, groups and boards 

 

 Acknowledging and devoting resources to the recruitment, training and retention 
of volunteers is vital 

 

 Community based schemes can work in tandem with other commissioned 
interventions that focus on addressing the underlying causes of an individual’s 
sense of loneliness 

Page 133



4 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

 

 Adopting a participatory approach which places local people at the heart of 
everything, with locally developed schemes tailored to the needs and 
circumstances of the local area 

 

 Discussion around tackling loneliness and/or isolation should be framed in a 
positive way and this should be reflected in the work undertaken 

 

 Promoting social prescribing as a tool to improve well-being, as well as a way of 
tackling/combating loneliness and isolation 

 

 Making projects like befriending services, more sustainable and less reliant on 
short-term funding streams. Trying to ensure the stability and flexibility of funding 
for third sector organisations 

 

 Integrated working through community planning partnerships 
 

4 The Scottish Government Strategy 
 
The Scottish Government launched their strategy in January 2018 
 
4.1 They identified particular groups at increased risk of social loneliness and 

isolation: 
- The socio-economically disadvantaged 
- Young mothers 
- Those with poor physical and mental health 
- People with disabilities 
- Children with few friends 
- Those living alone 
- Those who have been bereaved 
- Men over 50 
- Minority ethnic groups 
- Those from LGBTI communities 
- Carers 

 
4.2 Priority One is ‘Empower Communities to Lead’ 

- Community empowerment and public service reform 
- Building cohesive and resilient communities, promoting inclusive growth 

and championing community participation 
- Investing resources, with a greater emphasis on promoting the 

sustainability of funded projects 
 
4.3 Priority Two is ‘Play our Part’ 

- Reducing stigma 
- Encouraging kindness and contributing to creating kinder communities 
- Tackling poverty and addressing inequalities 
- Promoting and improving health and well-being 
- Giving our young people the best start in life 
- Promoting the role of the third sector and volunteering 
- Creating high quality places where people feel happy and safe to interact 

Page 134



5 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

- Promote heritage and culture 
- Improve infrastructure, especially accessible transport 

 
4.4 Outcome Measures 

- Percentage feeling lonely/lonely sometimes 
- Percentage of adults having contact with family, friends and neighbours 

less than once or twice 
- Percentage of people having limited regular contact in their 

neighbourhoods 
- Percentage who feel that they don’t have a strong sense of belonging to 

their local community 
- Percentage of people who exhibit a degree of social mistrust which is 

connected to the level of social contact and feelings of belonging to their 
local community 

- Percentage of people who volunteer 
- Percentage of people involved in some kind of community action to 

improve their local area 
- Children vulnerable to social isolation because of poor peer support or 

bullying 
 
5 Survey – What has Impact? 
 
A mapping exercise of the third sector in Cwm Taf resulted in 53 responses. They 
considered the following has the most impact; 

 Creating groups/services to bring people together  

 Suitable, affordable transport is a barrier 

 Community Connectors / GPSOs 

 Befriending 

 Community Centres / venues 

 Self-management / peer support 

 Access to advice and information 
 
This mirrors the findings from the research evidence summarised above. It appears 
that a variety of approaches is needed. In a lot of cases it means understanding or, 
at least, better signposting to, existing groups and services. 
 

ASSESSMENT/GOVERNANCE AND RISK ISSUES  
 
A risk identified in the PSB is lack of alignment and duplication with the SSWB 
Partnership and the Cwm Taf Regional Plan. 
 
NEXT STEPS 
 
Recommendations 
 
1 Social Prescribing and Community Coordination/Connectors 
 

A shared understanding and regional collaborative approach is required at a 
strategic level. This must be developed in partnership and endorsed by the 

Page 135



6 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Cwm Taf SSWB Partnership Board and delivered by the third sector working 
closely with community organisations.1  
 
Following recent discussions with colleagues in primary care and public health 
who have been carrying out preparatory work regarding the Transformation 
Proposal - it is recommended that; 

 A Social Prescribing Task and Finish Group is established led by Sara 
Thomas and reports to the Enhancing Community Cluster Workstream 

 A “concept paper” is produced which will detail our shared approach. The 
paper will make the case for two distinctive but connected role functions 
which are broadly speaking; 

o Social Prescribers – typically holding caseloads based in primary 
care settings or community hubs 

o Community Coordinators – acting as brokers between citizens and 
community groups and potentially developing new community 
support / services / assets. 

 
2 Befriending services 
 

Befriending services must be supported to be more sustainable. The current 
system of short-term funding or slippage is not conducive to developing robust 
support services of this kind. It can put existing services at risk and reduces 
the opportunity to extend and expand opportunities.  
 
ICF slippage has been utilised to fund befriending services for the past two 
years and as this is no longer a possibility current provision will end in March 
2019. 
 
It is recommended that; 

 Strong consideration is given including provision in the new 2019/20 ICF 
allocation.  

 The CVCs will gather view from the sector about whether existing 
schemes roll forward or need to be reviewed or considered in context of 
any other schemes funded from alternative streams.  

 
3 Developing community support / community assets 

 
3.1 A shared understanding and regional approach is required for investing 

in and developing community support and improving people’s wellbeing 
at the preventative level. Critical to this is the embedding of early 
identification of, and support for those who are experiencing loneliness 
and/or isolation or are at risk of doing so. 

 
Such an approach includes the need for all public services and 
commissioned providers to play an active role in delivering information, 
advice and assistance, in line with the draft ‘Be Well in Your 

                                                 
1 There is a duty to promote and encourage third sector and social value organisations in the delivery of 

wellbeing services in relation to the SSWB Act (see Social Value Outcomes toolkit). 
http://walescoop.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/walescoop-social-values-FPE-5.09-2.pdf. 

 

Page 136

http://walescoop.wpengine.com/wp-content/uploads/2018/09/walescoop-social-values-FPE-5.09-2.pdf


7 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Community’ model (attached). This builds on existing community 
assets and strengths and has three central themes; 

 
a) The right level of community support at the right time to support 

citizens and communities to become better connected and more 
resilient 
 

b) Focus on early help for those with emerging difficulties 
 

c) Pathways from community support into integrated public services 
for those who are really struggling 

 
3.2 Initial discussions have been held with several communities including 

working with the Building Communities Trust (BCT) with a view to 
developing their “Invest Local” projects in Aberfan and Penywaun. 
There has also been discussion about a partnership approach of 
engaging lonely and isolated people through the PSB Information, 
Communications and Involvement Group (or ICI, formerly ICE).  
Further discussions with community members in Aberfan and 
Penywaun are programmed for the near future.   

 
In Bridgend County, initial discussions have already started with BAVO, 
BCT and the “Invest Local Caerau” partnership to consider piloting 
work to develop a networked and resilient community through capacity 
building and community development approaches.  

 
4 Recommendation from APDIG 
 

A recommendation from APDIG that all groups consider loneliness and 
isolation as part of their plans/work programme as it is a cross cutting issue 
that affects all groups but solutions may be different depending on the service 
group etc.  

 
5 Further Considerations 
 

 BAVO manages a ‘Community Companions’ scheme’ which, in its next 
phase, will expand its offer to include young people. Further discussion is 
required with Cwm Taf partners to understand the approach taken by the 
various sectors within Bridgend County and to integrate plans and 
developments where possible.  
 

 The work to date, based on national research, tends to focus on older 
people.  But children, young, people and families, experience the same 
issues in relation to loneliness and isolation. Support for young people in 
the community is limited. 
 

 There is a lack of bereavement support services and investment has been 
identified as a priority need in Cwm Taf. 

 
 

Page 137

http://www.bavo.org.uk/over-50s/65


8 

Agenda Item 5.iv_Cwm Taf Well-Being Plan Delivery_Tackling L&I_SPBFEB19 

Appendices 
 
1 Response to the WG consultation “Connected Communities: Tackling 

Loneliness and Social Isolation” 
 
2 Draft “Be Well in Your Community” model 
 

Page 138



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 

  

Date / Timing Overarching Item Officer / PSB 
Member  

Scrutiny Focus  Time allocated 

6th September 
2018 
 
10am-12 noon 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.  Members will review and discuss the content of the report 

and identify the next steps to be taken to support further progress 

15 minutes 

Review of Thematic 
Delivery Plans relating to 
‘Our Cwm Taf’ 

Paul Mee 
Chris Hole 
Angela Jones 
Ellis Cooper 
Alyn Owen 
Ian Davy 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members will consider to the 

delivery plans for the 4 themed areas of the PSB’s Well-being Plan and 

discuss the proposed scrutiny arrangements to be put in place in 

respect of these.  Members will consider whether they need to look at 

each theme individually and invite the respective lead officer to attend 

the JOSC meeting together with the PSB Chair (who would present the 

item) 

60 minutes 

Development of Joint 
Overview and Scrutiny 
Work Programme 

Committee Chair – 
Cllr Tanya Skinner 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Committee will review and discuss a draft 

work programme as prepared by a Task and Finish Group.  Members 

will consider whether the draft work programme covers all areas which 

they are required to maintain an overview of and recommend 

amendments (if required). 

 

20 minutes 

Confirmation of proposed 
schedule of dates for Cwm 
Taf JOSC meetings 

Committee Chair – 
Cllr Tanya Skinner 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Members will consider the dates of future 

JOSC meetings and confirm a schedule which will take them to the end 

of the current civic year.   

10 mins 

 

P
age 139

A
genda Item

 7



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

  

22nd November  
2018 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

20 minutes 

Update on the ‘Thriving 
Communities’ objective 
 

Angela Jones 
(Public Health 
Wales) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer(s) for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead(s) on any issues 
identified. 

60 minutes 

Performance Management 
Framework 

Kelly Wells (PSB 
Support Team 
Manager) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members receive an update on the 
development of the Performance Management Framework which will 
be used to determine the impact of the work being undertaken in direct 
response to the PSB’s wellbeing objectives 

 

Cwm Taf JOSC – Venue 
Options Report 

TBC Scrutiny and Challenge:  Arising from the Committee Meeting held on 
06.09.2018; Members will receive a report outlining options for the 
siting of future meetings of Cwm Taf PSB JOSC and will be required to 
agree their preferred option. 

15 minutes 

24th January 
2019 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

20 minutes 

Update on the ‘Healthy 
People’ objective 

Paul Mee & Chris 
Hole 

Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

Information, 
Communication and 
Engagement Group 

Simon James 
(Interlink) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  Committee Members will  receive a report on 
the work of the ICE group and will have an opportunity to pose 
questions regarding the groups’ work. 

45 minutes 

P
age 140



Cwm Taf Public Services Board Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Work Programme Descriptors 2018/19 

(The Work Programme is reviewed at each meeting and as such is subject to change) 

As per the WAO scrutiny forward work programmes should: provide a clear rationale for topic selection; be more outcome focussed; ensure that the method of scrutiny is best suited to the topic area and the 
outcome desired; align scrutiny programmes with the council’s performance management, self-evaluation and improvement arrangements. 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 

22nd March 
2019 

Progress Updates on Public 
Services Board (PSB) and 
Strategic Partnership Board 
(SPB) 

Prof. Marcus 
Longley (Chair of 
Cwm Taf PSB) &  
Kelechi Nnoaham 
(Chair of Cwm Taf 
SPB) 

Scrutiny and Challenge:  The Chairs of Cwm Taf Public Services Board 

and Strategic Partnership Board will offer an update report on all 

progress made following publication of “Our Cwm Taf”, the PSB’s Well-

being Plan.   

15 minutes 

Update on the ‘Strong 
Economy’ objective 

Alyn Owen Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

Update on the ‘Tackling 
Loneliness and Isolation’ 
cross cutting objective 

Simon James Scrutiny and Challenge:   The Lead Officer for this objective will offer 
Members an update on the progress made to date in relation to this 
objective within the ‘Our Cwm Taf’ Wellbeing Plan.  Members will have 
an opportunity to review and directly question the Lead on any issues 
identified. 

45 minutes 

 
Additional items to consider for Work Programme 

 

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

  

Date to be 
confirmed 
 

  

P
age 141



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3.1 24/01/2019
	4 Progress Update - Cwm Taf PSB and Cwm Taf SPB
	Board Pack Cover
	Board Papers_SPBFEB19
	1_Final Agenda
	3_08-01-19 - minutes
	5i_Highlight exception reporting template_ThrivingCommunities
	5i_Performance Monitoring_ThrivingCommunities_App2
	5iv_Highlight exception reporting template_L&I
	5iv_PerformanceMonitoring_LI_App 1
	5iv_PerformanceMonitoring_LI_App 2
	5iv1_ LI Report to TLG Jan19_App 3
	6_Data Cymru Workshop Findings_JAN19
	7_Draft Annual Report_v1 for SPB 19022019
	8v_OtherBoardsReport_RPB
	9_Maximising opportunities for prevention in our Public Services

	Appendix 1
	5.i_Note for Board Members_Thriving Communities
	5i_Performance Monitoring_ThrivingCommunities_App1
	5ii_Highlight exception reporting template_Healthy People
	5ii_Performance Monitoring_Healthy People_App1
	5ii_Performance Monitoring_Healthy People_App2
	5iii_Highlight exception reporting template_StrongEconomy
	5iii_PerformanceMonitoring_StrongEconomy_App1
	5iii_PerformanceMonitoring_StrongEconomy_App2
	8vi_ICI Board Update_SPBFeb19
	8vi_ICI Strategy December 2018_app 1
	8vi_ICI TOR-SPB Jan 19_app2
	ICI cover (draft)
	8vi_Draft ICI TOR-SPB Jan 19_app2


	Appendix 2
	Information Pack Cover
	1. SAVE THE DATE - 20 March PSB-RPB
	2. Involvement event 24 Jan
	3. People's Platform training
	4. Work Plan Approved at November 18 SPB_Updated Jan19


	5 Strong Economy
	Appendix 1
	StrongEconomy_Highlightexception
	StrongEconomy_PerfApp1
	StrongEconomy_PerfApp2


	6 Loneliness and Isolation
	Appendix 1
	LI_highlightexception
	LI_PerfApp 1
	LI_PerfApp 2
	LI_TLGApp 3


	7 Work Programme 2018 - 19



